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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark one)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended April 26, 2014

OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-18225

CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

California 77-0059951

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
170 West Tasman Drive

San Jose, California 95134

(Address of principal executive office and zip code)
(408) 526-4000

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES x

NO -
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files). YES x NO -
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) o Smaller reporting company o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). YES © NO x
Number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of May 16, 2014: 5,122,689,670
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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)
CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except par value)

(Unaudited)

April 26, July 27,

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $6,241 $7,925
Investments 44,228 42,685
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $247 at April 26, 2014 4443 5470
and $228 at July 27, 2013 ’ ’
Inventories 1,528 1,476
Financing receivables, net 4,071 4,037
Deferred tax assets 2,504 2,616
Other current assets 1,273 1,312
Total current assets 64,288 65,521
Property and equipment, net 3,310 3,322
Financing receivables, net 3,537 3,911
Goodwill 24,076 21,919
Purchased intangible assets, net 3,461 3,403
Other assets 3,184 3,115
TOTAL ASSETS $101,856 $101,191
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $508 $3,283
Accounts payable 1,051 1,029
Income taxes payable — 192
Accrued compensation 2,813 3,182
Deferred revenue 9,198 9,262
Other current liabilities 4,945 5,048
Total current liabilities 18,515 21,996
Long-term debt 20,384 12,928
Income taxes payable 1,530 1,748
Deferred revenue 3,953 4,161
Other long-term liabilities 1,678 1,230
Total liabilities 46,060 42,063
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity:
Cisco shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value: 5 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.001 par value: 20,000 shares
authorized; 5,116 and 5,389 shares issued and outstanding at April 26, 2014 and 41,241 42,297
July 27, 2013, respectively
Retained earnings 13,849 16,215
Accumulated other comprehensive income 697 608

Total Cisco shareholders’ equity 55,787 59,120
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Noncontrolling interests 9 8
Total equity 55,796 59,128
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $101,856 $101,191

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in millions, except per-share amounts)
(Unaudited)

REVENUE:

Product

Service

Total revenue

COST OF SALES:

Product

Service

Total cost of sales

GROSS MARGIN

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development

Sales and marketing

General and administrative
Amortization of purchased intangible assets
Restructuring and other charges
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income (loss), net

Interest and other income (loss), net
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME
TAXES

Provision for income taxes

NET INCOME

Net income per share:

Basic

Diluted

Shares used in per-share calculation:
Basic

Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4

Three Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013
$8.,820 $9,559
2,725 2,657
11,545 12,216
3,595 3,782
944 923
4,539 4,705
7,006 7,511
1,565 1,542
2,342 2,375
460 530

71 89

26 33
4,464 4,569
2,542 2,942
170 162
(146 (145
76 (14
100 3
2,642 2,945
461 467
$2,181 $2,478
$0.42 $0.47
$0.42 $0.46
5,143 5,329
5,180 5,387
$0.19 $0.17

Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013
$26,640 $28,293
8,145 7,897
34,785 36,190
11,665 11,387
2,756 2,710
14,421 14,097
20,364 22,093
4,701 4,425
7,030 7,178
1,426 1,674
207 329
336 105
13,700 13,711
6,664 8,382
508 483
422 (440
187 (69
273 (26
6,937 8,356
1,331 643
$5,606 $7,713
$1.06 $1.45
$1.06 $1.44
5,271 5,316
5,311 5,361
$0.53 $0.45
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in millions)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income $2,181 $2,478 $5,606 $7,713
Available-for-sale investments:
Change in net unrealized gains, net of tax benefit
(expense) of $(8) and $(131) for the three and nine
months ended April 26, 2014, respectively, and $38 and (8 ) (63 ) 209 10
$(7) for the corresponding periods of fiscal 2013,
respectively

Net gains reclassified into earnings, net of tax expense of
$26 and $88 for the three and nine months ended April

26, 2014, respectively, and $2 and $16 for the 43 ) @ ) (146 ) (30
corresponding periods of fiscal 2013, respectively
(51 ) (67 ) 63 (20
Cash flow hedging instruments:
Change in unrealized gains and losses, net of tax benefit
(expense) of $(1) and $(2) for the three and nine months 13 (10 ) 44 53
ended April 26, 2014, respectively, and $1 and $(1) for
the corresponding periods of fiscal 2013, respectively
Net (gains) losses reclassified into earnings (16 ) 4 ) (44 ) (7
3 ) (14 ) — 51

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment and

other, net of tax benefit (expense) of $(5) for each of the

three and nine months ended April 26, 2014, 42 (128 ) 27 (8
respectively, and $1 and $(14) for the corresponding

periods of fiscal 2013, respectively

Other comprehensive (loss) income (12 ) (209 ) 90 23
Comprehensive income 2,169 2,269 5,696 7,736
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to 6 . a )'s
noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to Cisco Systems, $2.175 $2.269 $5.695 $7.741

Inc.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27,

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $5,606 $7,713
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization, and other 1,811 1,851
Share-based compensation expense 1,009 880
Provision for receivables 48 46
Deferred income taxes (181 ) 48
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (84 ) (48
(Gains) losses on investments and other, net (228 ) (68

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and

divestitures:
Accounts receivable 1,064 (439
Inventories (50 ) 238
Financing receivables 332 (448
Other assets 180 41
Accounts payable 2 ) 91
Income taxes, net (356 ) (642
Accrued compensation (411 ) (48
Deferred revenue (309 ) (169
Other liabilities 291 (56
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,720 8,908
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (27,884 ) (23,969
Proceeds from sales of investments 14,490 7,279
Proceeds from maturities of investments 12,048 13,234
Acquisition of property and equipment (950 ) (843
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (2,784 ) (6,371
Purchases of investments in privately held companies (315 ) (140
Return of investments in privately held companies 119 110
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 168 57
Other (30 ) (10
Net cash used in investing activities (5,138 ) (10,653
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuances of common stock 1,053 1,193
Repurchases of common stock - repurchase program (7,965 ) (1,554
Shares repurchased for tax withholdings on vesting of restricted stock units (345 ) (249
Short-term borrowings, original maturities less than 90 days, net 2 ) (20
Issuances of debt 8,001 —
Repayments of debt (3,274 ) —
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 84 48

~—
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Dividends paid (2,784 ) (2,392
Other (34 ) 42

Net cash used in financing activities (5,266 ) (2,932
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,684 ) (4,677
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7,925 9,799
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $6,241 $5,122
Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest $561 $562
Cash paid for income taxes, net $1,368 $1,236

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Shares of Common Stock Accumulated Total Cisco
Nine Months Ended April 26, and Retained Other Non-Controllingal
Common .. . . Shareholders .
2014 Stock Additional ~ Earnings Comprehensnﬁequity Interests  Equity
Paid-In Capital Income
BALANCE AT JULY 27,2013 5,389  § 42,297 $16,215 $ 608 $59,120 $ 8 $59,128
Net income 5,606 5,606 5,606
Other comprehensive income 89 89 1 90
Issuance of common stock 100 1,053 1,053 1,053
Repurchase of common stock (359 ) (2,837 ) (5,188 ) (8,025 ) (8,025 )
Shares repurchased for tax
withholdings on vesting of (14 ) (345 ) (345 ) 345 )
restricted stock units
Cash dividends declared ($0.53 2784 ) 2784 ) 2784 )
per common share)
Tax effects from employee 16 16 16
stock incentive plans
Share-based compensation 1,009 1,009 1,009
expense
Purchase acquisitions and other 48 48 48
I;(QI;ANCE AT APRIL 26, 5,116 § 41,241 $13,849 $ 697 $ 55,787 $ 9 $55,796
Shares of Common Stock AccumulatedTotal Cisco
Nine Months Ended April 27, and Retained Other Non-Controllifigtal
Common ... . .Shareholders .
2013 Stock Additional ~ Earnings Comprehens%% uity Interests Equity
Paid-In Capital Income
BALANCE AT JULY 28,2012 5298  $ 39,271 $11,354 $ 661 $51,286 $ 15 $51,301
Net income 7,713 7,713 7,713
Other comprehensive income )3 73 % ) 23
(loss)
Issuance of common stock 111 1,193 1,193 1,193
Repurchase of common stock (81 ) (606 ) (1,007 ) (1,613 ) (1,613 )
Shares repurchased for tax
withholdings on vesting of (13 ) (249 ) (249 ) 249 )
restricted stock units
Cash dividends declared ($0.45 (2392 ) 2392 ) (2392 )
per common share)
Tax effects from employee
stock incentive plans (120 ) (120 ) (120 )
Share-based compensation 230 380 380
expense
Purchase acquisitions and other 62 62 62
lj(ﬁlgANCE AT APRIL 27, 5315  $ 40431 $15,668 $ 689 $56,788 $ 10 $56,798

10
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In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program. As of April 26, 2014,
the Company’s Board of Directors had authorized an aggregate repurchase of up to $97 billion of common stock under
this program, with no termination date. The stock repurchases since the inception of this program and the related
impacts on Cisco shareholders’ equity are summarized in the following table (in millions):

Shares of Common Stock Retained Total Cisco

Common and Additional Earnines Shareholders’

Stock Paid-In Capital £ Equity
Repurchases of common stock under the repurchase 4027 $20.839 $66,092 $86.931

program
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1.Basis of Presentation

The fiscal year for Cisco Systems, Inc. (the “Company” or “Cisco”) is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the last Saturday in
July. Fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 are each 52-week fiscal years. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of Cisco and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
The Company conducts business globally and is primarily managed on a geographic basis in the following three
geographic segments: the Americas; Europe, Middle East, and Africa (EMEA); and Asia Pacific, Japan, and China
(APJC).

The accompanying financial data as of April 26, 2014 and for the three and nine months ended April 26, 2014 and
April 27, 2013 has been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
(GAAP) have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. The July 27, 2013 Consolidated
Balance Sheet was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. However, the Company believes that the disclosures are
adequate to make the information presented not misleading. These Consolidated Financial Statements should be read
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013.

The Company consolidates its investments in a venture fund managed by SOFTBANK Corp. and its affiliates
(“SOFTBANK?”) as this is a variable interest entity and the Company is the primary beneficiary. The noncontrolling
interests attributed to SOFTBANK are presented as a separate component from the Company’s equity in the equity
section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. SOFTBANK’s share of the earnings in the venture fund are not presented
separately in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as these amounts are not material for any of the fiscal periods
presented.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments, except as disclosed
herein) necessary to present fairly the statement of financial position as of April 26, 2014; the results of operations and
statements of comprehensive income for the three and nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013; and the
statements of cash flows and equity for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, as applicable, have
been made. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended April 26, 2014 are not necessarily indicative
of the operating results for the full fiscal year or any future periods.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior-period amounts in order to conform to the current period’s
presentation. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were
issued.

2.Recent Accounting Pronouncements

(a) New Accounting Updates Recently Adopted

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an accounting standard update requiring
enhanced disclosures about certain financial instruments and derivative instruments that are offset in the statement of
financial position or that are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements. This
accounting standard became effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2014. As a result of the application
of this accounting standard update, the Company has provided additional disclosures in Note 11.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an accounting standard update intended to simplify how an entity tests indefinite-lived
intangible assets other than goodwill for impairment by providing entities with an option to perform a qualitative
assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is necessary. This accounting standard update became
effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, and its adoption did not have any impact on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

12
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In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to require reclassification adjustments from other
comprehensive income to be presented either in the financial statements or in the notes to the financial statements.
This accounting standard became effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2014. As a result of the
application of this accounting standard update, the Company has provided additional disclosures in Note 15.

8
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

(b)Recent Accounting Standards or Updates Not Yet Effective

In March 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update requiring an entity to release into net income the
entire amount of a cumulative translation adjustment related to its investment in a foreign entity when as a parent it
either sells a part or all of its investment in the foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a
subsidiary or group of assets within the foreign entity. This accounting standard update will be effective for the
Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2015. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this
accounting standard update on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that provides explicit guidance on the financial
statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward or a tax credit
carryforward exists. Under the new standard update, an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax
benefit, is to be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss
carryforward or a tax credit carryforward. This accounting standard update will be effective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2015 and applied prospectively with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this accounting standard update on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that changes the criteria for reporting discontinued
operations. Under the accounting standard update, a disposal of a component of an entity or a group of components of
an entity is required to be reported in discontinued operations if the disposal represents a strategic shift that has, or
will have, a major effect on an entity's operations and financial results when either it qualifies as held for sale,
disposed of by sale, or disposed of other than by sale. This accounting standard update will be effective for the
Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this
accounting standard update on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.Business Combinations

(a) Acquisition Summary

The Company completed five business combinations during the nine months ended April 26, 2014. A summary of the
allocation of the total purchase consideration is presented as follows (in millions):

Net Tangible
. Purchased
Purchase Assets Acquired . .
. . . Intangible Goodwill
Consideration  (Liabilities
Assets
Assumed)
Composite Software, Inc. $160 $(10 ) $75 $95
Sourcefire, Inc. 2,449 81 577 1,791
WhipTail Technologies, Inc. 351 (34 ) 105 280
All others (2 in total) 10 (2 ) 6 6
Total $2,970 $35 $763 $2,172

On July 29, 2013, the Company completed its acquisition of privately held Composite Software, Inc. (“Composite
Software”), a provider of data virtualization software and services. Composite Software provides technology that
connects many types of data from across the network and makes it appear as if the data is in one place. With its
acquisition of Composite Software, the Company intends to extend its next-generation services platform by
connecting data and infrastructure. Revenue from the Composite Software acquisition has been included in the
Company's Services category.

On October 7, 2013, the Company completed its acquisition of Sourcefire, Inc. (‘“Sourcefire”), a leader in intelligent
cybersecurity solutions. Sourcefire delivers innovative, highly automated security through continuous awareness,
threat detection, and protection across its portfolio, including next-generation intrusion prevention systems,
next-generation firewalls, and advanced malware protection. With the Sourcefire acquisition, the Company aims to
accelerate its security strategy of defending, discovering, and remediating advanced threats to provide continuous

14
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security solutions to the Company’s customers in more places across the network. Product revenue from the Sourcefire
acquisition has been included in the Company's Security product category.

9
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

On October 28, 2013, the Company completed its acquisition of privately held WhipTail Technologies, Inc.
(“WhipTail”), a leader in high performance, scalable solid state memory systems that enable organizations to simplify
data center and virtualized environments and process more data in less time. With its WhipTail acquisition, the
Company aims to strengthen its Unified Computing System (UCS) strategy and enhance application performance by
integrating scalable solid state memory into the UCS’s fabric computing architecture. Product revenue from the
WhipTail acquisition has been included in the Company's Data Center product category.

The total purchase consideration related to the Company’s business combinations completed during the nine months
ended April 26, 2014 consisted of either cash consideration or cash consideration along with vested share-based
awards assumed. The total cash and cash equivalents acquired from these business combinations was approximately
$132 million. Total transaction costs related to the Company’s business combination activities were $7 million and $23
million for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, respectively. These transaction costs were
expensed as incurred in general and administrative (G&A) expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The Company’s purchase price allocation for business combinations completed during recent periods is preliminary
and subject to revision as additional information about fair value of assets and liabilities becomes available.
Additional information, which existed as of the acquisition date but at that time was unknown to the Company, may
become known to the Company during the remainder of the measurement period, a period not to exceed 12 months
from the acquisition date. Adjustments in the purchase price allocation may require a recasting of the amounts
allocated to goodwill retroactive to the period in which the acquisition occurred.

The goodwill generated from the Company’s business combinations completed during the nine months ended April 26,
2014 is primarily related to expected synergies. The goodwill is generally not deductible for income tax purposes.
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the operating results of each business combination from the date of
acquisition. Pro forma results of operations for the acquisitions completed during the nine months ended April 26,
2014 have not been presented because the effects of the acquisitions, individually and in the aggregate, were not
material to the Company’s financial results.

(b)Insieme Networks, Inc.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company acquired the remaining interest in Insieme Networks, Inc. See Note
12.

4.Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

(a)Goodwill

The following table presents the goodwill allocated to the Company’s reportable segments as of and during the nine
months ended April 26, 2014 (in millions):

Balance at Acquisiti Oth iale.lil;% at
cquisitions Other pril 26,
July 27, 2013 O14
Americas $13,800 $1,198 $(12 ) $14,986
EMEA 5,037 638 (3 ) 5,672
APIC 3,082 336 — 3,418
Total $21,919 $2,172 $(15 ) $24,076

10
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

(b)Purchased Intangible Assets
The following table presents details of the Company’s intangible assets acquired through business combinations
completed during the nine months ended April 26, 2014 (in millions, except years):

FINITE LIVES INDEFINITI
LIVEIS
CUSTOMER OTAL
TECHNOLOGY RELATIONSHIPS OTHER IPR&D
Weighted-Average Useful Weighted-Average Useful Weighted-Average Useful
Life (in Years) AmouEtlfe (in Years) Amouﬁtlfe (in Years) Amodmnodrnount
Composite ¢, $60 3.9 $14 0.0 S—$1 $75
Software, Inc.
Islfcurceflre’ 7.0 5.0 129 3.0 26 22 577
WhipTail
Technologies, 5.0 5.0 1 2.7 3 38 105
Inc.
All ofher 0.0 — 00 — — 6
acquisitions
Total $144 $29 $61 $763
The following tables present details of the Company’s purchased intangible assets (in millions):
April 26,2014 Gross Accumulated — g
Amortization
Purchased intangible assets with finite lives:
Technology $4,117 $(1,885 ) $2,232
Customer relationships 1,698 (653 ) 1,045
Other 56 (16 ) 40
Total purchased intangible assets with finite lives 5,871 (2,554 ) 3,317
In-process research and development, with indefinite lives 144 — 144
Total $6,015 $(2,554 ) $3.,461
July 27, 2013 Gross Accun}ula.ted Net
Amortization
Purchased intangible assets with finite lives:
Technology $3,563 $(1,366 ) $2,197
Customer relationships 1,566 (466 ) 1,100
Other 30 (10 ) 20
Total purchased intangible assets with finite lives 5,159 (1,842 ) 3,317
In-process research and development, with indefinite lives 86 — 86
Total $5,245 $(1,842 ) $3,403

Purchased intangible assets include intangible assets acquired through business combinations as well as through direct

purchases or licenses.

The following table presents the amortization of purchased intangible assets (in millions):

Amortization of purchased intangible assets:

Three Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013

Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013

17
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Cost of sales $190 $156 $553 $444
Operating expenses 71 89 207 329
Total $261 $245 $760 $773

There were no impairment charges related to purchased intangible assets during the periods presented.

11
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

The estimated future amortization expense of purchased intangible assets with finite lives as of April 26, 2014 is as
follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2014 (remaining three months) $259
2015 959
2016 726
2017 550
2018 398
Thereafter 425
Total $3,317

5.Restructuring and Other Charges
August Fiscal 2014 Plan

In August 2013, the Company announced a workforce reduction plan that will impact up to 4,000 employees, or 5%,
of the Company’s global workforce. This workforce reduction plan is designed to enable the Company to rebalance its
workforce in order to reinvest in key growth areas such as the cloud, data center, mobility, services, software, and
security and to drive operational efficiencies. As the Company intends to reinvest in the above areas, it does not
expect significant overall cost savings as a result of this rebalancing of its resources.

In connection with this restructuring action, the Company incurred charges of $26 million and $336 million for the
three and nine months ended April 26, 2014. The Company expects total pre-tax charges pursuant to these
restructuring actions not to exceed $500 million, and that substantially all of the remaining charges will be incurred in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014.

The following table summarizes the activities related to the restructuring and other charges pursuant to the August
Fiscal 2014 Plan (in millions):

August Fiscal 2014 Plan Employee Other Total
Severance

Gross charges in fiscal 2014 $331 $5 $336

Cash payments (306 ) — (306 )

Non-cash items — (5 ) (5 )

Liability as of April 26, 2014 $25 $— $25

Fiscal 2011 Plans

The Fiscal 2011 Plans consist primarily of the realignment and restructuring of the Company’s business announced in
July 2011 and of certain consumer product lines as announced during April 2011. The Company completed the Fiscal
2011 Plans at the end of fiscal 2013 and does not expect any remaining charges related to these actions. The Company
incurred cumulative charges of approximately $1.1 billion in connection with these plans. For the three and nine
months ended April 27, 2013, such charges were $33 million and $105 million. The remaining liability balance as of
April 26, 2014 was $4 million inclusive of severance and non-severance activities.
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6.Balance Sheet Details
The following tables provide details of selected balance sheet items (in millions):

April 26, July 27,

2014 2013
Inventories:
Raw materials $57 $105
Work in process 5 24
Finished goods:
Distributor inventory and deferred cost of sales 623 572
Manufactured finished goods 550 480
Total finished goods 1,173 1,052
Service-related spares 255 256
Demonstration systems 38 39
Total $1,528 $1,476
Property and equipment, net:
Land, buildings, and building and leasehold improvements $4.496 $4.,426
Computer equipment and related software 1,442 1,416
Production, engineering, and other equipment 5,750 5,721
Operating lease assets (1) 360 326
Furniture and fixtures 508 497

12,556 12,386
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1) (9,246 ) (9,064 )
Total $3,310 $3,322

(1)  Accumulated depreciation related to operating lease assets was $198 and $203 as of April 26, 2014 and July 27,

2013, respectively.

Other assets:

Deferred tax assets $1,540 $1,539
Investments in privately held companies 923 833
Other 721 743
Total $3,184 $3,115
Deferred revenue:

Service $8,746 $9,403
Product:

Unrecognized revenue on product shipments and other deferred revenue 3,669 3,340
Cash receipts related to unrecognized revenue from two-tier distributors 736 680
Total product deferred revenue 4,405 4,020
Total $13,151 $13,423
Reported as:

Current $9,198 $9,262
Noncurrent 3,953 4,161
Total $13,151 $13,423
13
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7.Financing Receivables and Guarantees

(a)Financing Receivables

Financing receivables primarily consist of lease receivables, loan receivables, and financed service contracts and
other. Lease receivables represent sales-type and direct-financing leases resulting from the sale of the Company’s and
complementary third-party products and are typically collateralized by a security interest in the underlying assets.
Loan receivables represent financing arrangements related to the sale of the Company’s products and services, which
may include additional funding for other costs associated with network installation and integration of the Company’s
products and services. Lease receivables consist of arrangements with terms of four years on average, while loan
receivables generally have terms of up to three years. The financed service contracts and other category includes
financing receivables related to technical support and advanced services, as well as receivables related to financing of
certain indirect costs associated with leases. Revenue related to the technical support services is typically deferred and
included in deferred service revenue and is recognized ratably over the period during which the related services are to
be performed, which typically ranges from one to three years.

A summary of the Company’s financing receivables is presented as follows (in millions):

April 26, 2014 Lease Loan Financed Service = Total Financing
’ Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Receivables

Gross $3,783 $1,621 $2.810 $8,214
Unearned income (246 ) — — (246 )
Allowance for credit loss (249 ) (92 (19 (360 )
Total, net $3,288 $1,529 $ 2,791 $7,608
Reported as:
Current $1,480 $814 $ 1,777 $4,071
Noncurrent 1,808 715 1,014 3,537
Total, net $3,288 $1,529 $ 2,791 $7,608

Lease Loan Financed Service = Total Financing
July 27,2013 Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Receivables
Gross $3,780 $1,649 $ 3,136 $8,565
Unearned income (273 ) — — 273 )
Allowance for credit loss (238 ) (86 (20 (344 )
Total, net $3,269 $1,563 $3,116 $7,948
Reported as:
Current $1,418 $898 $ 1,721 $4,037
Noncurrent 1,851 665 1,395 3,911
Total, net $3,269 $1,563 $3,116 $7,948

As of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, the deferred service revenue related to the financed service contracts and

other was $1,592 million and $2,036 million, respectively.

Contractual maturities of the gross lease receivables at April 26, 2014 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2014 (remaining three months) $589
2015 1,471
2016 971
2017 524
2018 194
Thereafter 34

Total $3,783
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Actual cash collections may differ from the contractual maturities due to early customer buyouts, refinancings, or
defaults.
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(b)Credit Quality of Financing Receivables
Financing receivables categorized by the Company’s internal credit risk rating as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013
are summarized as follows (in millions):

INTERNAL CREDIT RISK
RATING
. Gross Receivables,
April 26, 2014 1to4 5t06 ! .and Total Residual Net of Unearned
Higher Value
Income

Lease receivables $1,604 $1,557 $133 $3,294 $243 $3,537
Loan receivables 894 595 132 1,621 — 1,621
Financed service contracts and other 1,569 1,160 81 2,810 — 2,810
Total $4,067 $3,312 $346 $7,725 $243 $7,968

INTERNAL CREDIT RISK

RATING

. Gross Receivables,
July 27, 2013 1to4 5to6 ! gnd Total Residual Net of Unearned
Higher Value
Income

Lease receivables $1,681 $1,482 $93 $3,256 $251 $3,507
Loan receivables 842 777 30 1,649 — 1,649
Financed service contracts and other 1,876 1,141 119 3,136 — 3,136
Total $4,399 $3,400 $242 $8,041 $251 $8,292

The Company determines the adequacy of its allowance for credit loss by assessing the risks and losses inherent in its
financing receivables by portfolio segment. The portfolio segment is based on the types of financing offered by the
Company to its customers, which consist of the following: lease receivables, loan receivables, and financed service
contracts and other.
The Company’s internal credit risk ratings of 1 through 4 correspond to investment-grade ratings, while credit risk
ratings of 5 and 6 correspond to non-investment grade ratings. Credit risk ratings of 7 and higher correspond to
substandard ratings.
In circumstances when collectibility is not deemed reasonably assured, the associated revenue is deferred in
accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition policies, and the related allowance for credit loss, if any, is
included in deferred revenue. The Company also records deferred revenue associated with financing receivables when
there are remaining performance obligations, as it does for financed service contracts. Total allowances for credit loss
and deferred revenue as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 were $1,989 million and $2,453 million, respectively, and
they were associated with financing receivables (net of unearned income) of $7,968 million and $8,292 million as of
their respective period ends.
The following tables present the aging analysis of financing receivables as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 (in
millions):

DAYS PAST DUE (INCLUDES

BILLED AND UNBILLED)
Gross
Total Receivables, Nonaccrual Impaired

April 26, 2014 31-60 61-90 91+ Past Due Current Net of Financing Financing
Unearned  Receivables Receivables
Income

Lease receivables $83 $41 $165 $289 $3,248 $3,537 $67 $54

Loan receivables 5 6 15 26 1,595 1,621 8 8
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Financed service contracts and other228 96 239 563 2,247 2,810 11 8
Total $316 $143 $419 $878 $7,090 $7,968 $86 $70
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DAYS PAST DUE (INCLUDES
BILLED AND UNBILLED)
Gross
Total Receivables, Nonaccrual Impaired
July 27, 2013 31-60 61-90 91+ Past Due Current Net of Financing Financing
Unearned  Receivables Receivables
Income
Lease receivables $85  $48 $124 $257 $3,250 $3,507 $27 $22
Loan receivables 6 3 11 20 1,629 1,649 11 9
Financed service contracts and other75 48 392 515 2,621 3,136 18 11
Total $166 $99  $527 $792 $7,500 $8,292 $56 $42

Past due financing receivables are those that are 31 days or more past due according to their contractual payment
terms. The data in the preceding tables are presented by contract, and the aging classification of each contract is based
on the oldest outstanding receivable, and therefore past due amounts also include unbilled and current receivables
within the same contract. The balances of either unbilled or current financing receivables included in the category of
91 days plus past due for financing receivables were $295 million and $406 million as of April 26, 2014 and July 27,
2013, respectively.

As of April 26, 2014, the Company had financing receivables of $88 million, net of unbilled or current receivables
from the same contract, that were in the category of 91 days plus past due but remained on accrual status. Such
balance was $87 million as of July 27, 2013. A financing receivable may be placed on nonaccrual status earlier if, in
management’s opinion, a timely collection of the full principal and interest becomes uncertain.

(c)Allowance for Credit Loss Rollforward

The allowances for credit loss and the related financing receivables are summarized as follows (in millions):

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Lease Loan Financed Service

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Total
ﬁéllczlwance for credit loss as of January 25, $254 $98 $22 $374
Provisions (6 ) (10 ) 2 ) (18 )
Recoveries (write-offs), net (1 ) 4 (1 ) 2

Foreign exchange and other 2 — — 2

ﬁéllczlwance for credit loss as of April 26, $249 $92 $ 19 $360

Gross receivables as of April 26, 2014, $3.537 $1.621 $2.810 $7.968

net of unearned income

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Lease Loan Financed Service

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of July 27, 2013 $238 $86 $ 20 $344
Provisions 9 5 — 14

Recoveries (write-offs), net — 4 (1 ) 3

Foreign exchange and other 2 3 ) — (1 )
Allowance for credit loss as of April 26, $249 $92 $ 19 $360

2014
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CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
. Lease Loan Financed Service
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Total
ﬁéllcgwance for credit loss as of January 26, $247 $101 $ 13 $361
Provisions 30 8 6 44
Recoveries (write-offs), net (29 ) (15 ) — (44 )
Foreign exchange and other A3 ) (1 ) — 4 )
%llcgwance for credit loss as of April 27, $245 $93 $19 $357
Gross recelvable‘s as of April 27, 2013, $3.478 $1.671 $2.924 $8.073
net of unearned income
CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
) . Lease Loan Financed Service
Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Receivables Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of July 28, 2012 $247 $122 $11 $380
Provisions 27 (15 ) 8 20
Recoveries (write-offs), net (29 ) (15 ) — (44 )
Foreign exchange and other — 1 — 1
Allowance for credit loss as of April 27, $245 $93 $ 19 $357

2013
The Company assesses the allowance for credit loss related to financing receivables on either an individual or a
collective basis. The Company considers various factors in evaluating lease and loan receivables and the earned
portion of financed service contracts for possible impairment on an individual basis. These factors include the
Company’s historical experience, credit quality and age of the receivable balances, and economic conditions that may
affect a customer’s ability to pay. When the evaluation indicates that it is probable that all amounts due pursuant to the
contractual terms of the financing agreement, including scheduled interest payments, are unable to be collected, the
financing receivable is considered impaired. All such outstanding amounts, including any accrued interest, will be
assessed and fully reserved at the customer level. The Company’s internal credit risk ratings are categorized as 1
through 10, with the lowest credit risk rating representing the highest quality financing receivables.

Typically, the Company also considers receivables with a risk rating of 8 or higher to be impaired and will include
them in the individual assessment for allowance. These balances, as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, are presented
under “(b) Credit Quality of Financing Receivables” above.

The Company evaluates the remainder of its financing receivables portfolio for impairment on a collective basis and
records an allowance for credit loss at the portfolio segment level. When evaluating the financing receivables on a
collective basis, the Company uses expected default frequency rates published by a major third-party credit-rating
agency as well as its own historical loss rate in the event of default, while also systematically giving effect to
economic conditions, concentration of risk, and correlation.

(d)Financing Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Company provides financing guarantees for various third-party financing
arrangements extended to channel partners and end-user customers. Payments under these financing guarantee
arrangements were not material for the periods presented.

Channel Partner Financing Guarantees The Company facilitates arrangements for third-party financing extended to
channel partners, consisting of revolving short-term financing, generally with payment terms ranging from 60 to 90
days. These financing arrangements facilitate the working capital requirements of the channel partners, and, in some
cases, the Company guarantees a portion of these arrangements. The volume of channel partner financing was $5.8
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billion for each of the three months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, respectively. The volume of channel
partner financing was $17.9 billion and $17.2 billion for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013,
respectively. The balance of the channel partner financing subject to guarantees was $1.1 billion and $1.4 billion as of
April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, respectively.
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End-User Financing Guarantees The Company also provides financing guarantees for third-party financing
arrangements extended to end-user customers related to leases and loans, which typically have terms of up to three
years. The volume of financing provided by third parties for leases and loans as to which the Company had provided
guarantees was $44 million and $38 million for the three months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013,
respectively, and was $89 million and $137 million for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013,
respectively.

Financing Guarantee Summary The aggregate amounts of financing guarantees outstanding at April 26, 2014 and
July 27, 2013, representing the total maximum potential future payments under financing arrangements with third
parties along with the related deferred revenue, are summarized in the following table (in millions):

April 26, July 27,

2014 2013
Maximum potential future payments relating to financing guarantees:
Channel partner $247 $438
End user 229 237
Total $476 $675
Deferred revenue associated with financing guarantees:
Channel partner $(132 ) $(225 )
End user (198 ) (191 )
Total $(330 ) $(416 )
Maximum potential future payments relating to financing guarantees, net of $146 $259

associated deferred revenue

8.Investments
(a) Summary of Available-for-Sale Investments
The following tables summarize the Company’s available-for-sale investments (in millions):

Amortized Gross Gross
April 26, 2014 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value

Cost .

Gains Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. government securities $31,675 $34 $(6 ) $31,703
U.S. government agency securities 1,060 2 (1 ) 1,061
Non-U.S. government and agency securities 819 2 (1 ) 820
Corporate debt securities 8,050 75 (10 ) 8,115
U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities 567 3 — 570
Total fixed income securities 42,171 116 (18 ) 42,269
Publicly traded equity securities 1,314 652 @ ) 1,959
Total $43,485 $768 $(25 ) $44,228

Amortized Gross Gross
July 27,2013 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value

Cost .

Gains Losses

Fixed income securities:
U.S. government securities $27.814 $22 $(13 ) $27,823
U.S. government agency securities 3,083 7 (1 ) 3,089
Non-U.S. government and agency securities 1,094 3 2 ) 1,095
Corporate debt securities 7,876 55 (50 ) 7,881
Total fixed income securities 39,867 87 (66 ) 39,888
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Publicly traded equity securities 2,063 738
Total $41,930 $825
18

4
$(70

) 2,797
) $42,685
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Non-U.S. government and agency securities include agency and corporate debt securities that are guaranteed by
non-U.S. governments.

(b)Gains and Losses on Available-for-Sale Investments

The following table presents the gross realized gains and gross realized losses related to the Company’s
available-for-sale investments (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Gross realized gains $75 $55 $267 $175
Gross realized losses (6 ) (49 ) (33 ) (129 )
Total $69 $6 $234 $46

The following table presents the realized net gains related to the Company’s available-for-sale investments by security
type (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net. gains (1(‘)s.ses) on investments in publicly traded $55 $(2 ) $199 $12
equity securities
Net gains on investments in fixed income securities 14 8 35 34
Total $69 $6 $234 $46

There were no impairment charges for the three months ended April 26, 2014. For the nine months ended April 26,
2014, the realized net gains related to the Company's available-for-sale investments included impairment charges of
$11 million. These impairment charges related to publicly traded equity securities and were due to a decline in the fair
value of those securities below their cost basis that were determined to be other than temporary. There were no
impairment charges on available-for-sale investments for the corresponding periods in fiscal 2013.
The following tables present the breakdown of the available-for-sale investments with gross unrealized losses and the
duration that those losses had been unrealized at April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 (in millions):

UNREALIZED LOSSES UNREALIZED LOSSES

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATERTOTAL

Gross Gross Gross
April 26, 2014 Fair Value  Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Value  Unrealized

Losses Losses Losses
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government securities $5,111 $(6 ) $38 $— $5,119 $(6 )
U.S. ggvernment agency 396 a ) 3 o 399 a )
securities
Non-U.S. gox./e?mment and 378 a ) — . 378 a )
agency securities
Corporate debt securities 1,654 (10 ) 52 — 1,706 (10 )
U.S. agency mortgage-backed 158 o o o 158 o
securities
Total fixed income securities 7,697 (18 ) 63 — 7,760 (18 )
Publicly traded equity securities 117 (7 ) — — 117 (7 )
Total $7,814 $Q25 ) $63 $— $7,877 $(25 )
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UNREALIZED LOSSES UNREALIZED LOSSES TOTAL
LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER
Gross Gross Gross
July 27, 2013 Fair Value  Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Value  Unrealized
Losses Losses Losses
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government securities $7,865 $(13 ) $— $— $7,865 $(13 )
U.S. ggvernment agency 294 a )y — . 294 a )
securities
Non-U.S. gox./e?mment and 432 @ )y o 432 @ )
agency securities
Corporate debt securities 3,704 (50 ) 4 — 3,708 (50 )
Total fixed income securities 12,295 (66 ) 4 — 12,299 (66 )
Publicly traded equity securities 278 4 ) — — 278 4 )
Total $12,573 $(70 ) $4 $— $12,577 $(70 )

As of April 26, 2014, for fixed income securities that were in unrealized loss positions, the Company has determined
that (i) it does not have the intent to sell any of these investments, and (ii) it is not more likely than not that it will be
required to sell any of these investments before recovery of the entire amortized cost basis. In addition, as of April 26,
2014, the Company anticipates that it will recover the entire amortized cost basis of such fixed income securities and
has determined that no other-than-temporary impairments associated with credit losses were required to be recognized
during the nine months ended April 26, 2014.
The Company has evaluated its publicly traded equity securities as of April 26, 2014 and has determined that there
was no indication of other-than-temporary impairments in the respective categories of unrealized losses. This
determination was based on several factors, which include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been
less than the cost basis, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the Company’s intent and
ability to hold the publicly traded equity securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in market value.
(c)Maturities of Fixed Income Securities
The following table summarizes the maturities of the Company’s fixed income securities at April 26, 2014 (in
millions):

Amortized Cost ~ Fair Value

Less than 1 year $15,022 $15,038
Due in 1 to 2 years 13,061 13,101
Due in 2 to 5 years 13,380 13,415
Due after 5 years 708 715
Total $42.171 $42.269

Actual maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
certain obligations.

(d)Securities Lending

The Company periodically engages in securities lending activities with certain of its available-for-sale investments.
These transactions are accounted for as a secured lending of the securities, and the securities are typically loaned only
on an overnight basis. The average daily balance of securities lending for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and
April 27, 2013 was $1.4 billion and $0.7 billion, respectively. The Company requires collateral equal to at least 102%
of the fair market value of the loaned security and that the collateral be in the form of cash or liquid, high-quality
assets. The Company engages in these secured lending transactions only with highly creditworthy counterparties, and
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the associated portfolio custodian has agreed to indemnify the Company against collateral losses. The Company did
not experience any losses in connection with the secured lending of securities during the periods presented. As of
April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, the Company had no outstanding securities lending transactions.
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9.Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value
measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be either recorded or disclosed at fair value, the
Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact, and it also considers
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.

(a)Fair Value Hierarchy

The accounting guidance for fair value measurement requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy
based on the level of independent, objective evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial
instrument’s categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices, that are observable for the
asset or liability, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or
model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable market data.

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are
significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

(b) Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 were as
follows (in millions):

APRIL 26, 2014 JULY 27,2013

FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS MEASUREMENTS

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

Balance Balance

Assets
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $4,475 $— $4,475 $6,045 $— $6,045
Available-for-sale investments:
U.S. government securities — 31,703 31,703 — 27,823 27,823
U.S. government agency securities — 1,061 1,061 — 3,089 3,089
Non-U.S. government and agency securities — 820 820 — 1,095 1,095
Corporate debt securities — 8,115 8,115 — 7,881 7,881
U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities — 570 570 — — —
Publicly traded equity securities 1,959 — 1,959 2,797 — 2,797
Derivative assets — 148 148 — 182 182
Total $6,434 $42,417 $48,851 $8,842 $40,070  $48912
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities $— $54 $54 $— $171 $171
Total $— $54 $54 $— $171 $171
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Level 1 publicly traded equity securities are determined by using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2 fixed income securities are priced using quoted market prices for similar instruments or nonbinding market
prices that are corroborated by observable market data. The Company uses inputs such as actual trade data, benchmark
yields, broker/dealer quotes, and other similar data, which are obtained from quoted market prices, independent
pricing vendors, or other sources, to determine the ultimate fair value of these assets and liabilities. The Company uses
such pricing data as the primary input to make its assessments and determinations as to the ultimate valuation of its
investment portfolio and has not made, during the periods presented, any material adjustments to such inputs. The
Company is ultimately responsible for the financial statements and underlying estimates. The Company’s derivative
instruments are primarily classified as Level 2, as they are not actively traded and are valued using pricing models that
use observable market inputs. The Company did not have any transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements during the periods presented.
(c) Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
For the nine months ended April 26, 2014, the Company recognized $10 million of losses related to the impairment of
privately held investments.
For the three and nine months ended April 27, 2013, the Company’s financial instruments and nonfinancial assets that
were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are summarized as follows (in millions):

April 27,2013

Net Carrying Total Gains Total Gains
(Losses) for the (Losses) for the
Value as of .
End of Period Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
Assets held for sale $72 $44 $44
Investments in privately held companies (impaired) $66 ® ) (23 )
Gains on assets no longer held at period end 34 34
Net losses for nonrecurring measurement $73 $55

The assets in the preceding table were measured at fair value due to events or circumstances the Company identified
as having significant impact on their fair value during the respective periods. To arrive at the valuation of these assets,
the Company considers any significant changes in the financial metrics and economic variables, and also uses
third-party valuation reports to assist in the valuation as necessary.

The fair value measurement of the impaired investments was classified as Level 3 because significant unobservable
inputs were used in the valuation due to the absence of quoted market prices and inherent lack of liquidity. Significant
unobservable inputs, which included financial metrics of comparable private and public companies, financial
condition and near-term prospects of the investees, recent financing activities of the investees, and the investees’
capital structure as well as other economic variables, reflected the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing these assets. The impairment charges, representing the difference between the net book value and the fair
value as a result of the evaluation, were recorded to other income (loss), net.

The assets held for sale represent primarily land and buildings, as well as other items which met the criteria to be
classified as held for sale. The fair value of assets held for sale was measured with the assistance of third-party
valuation models which used discounted cash flow techniques as part of their analysis. The fair value measurement
was categorized as Level 3 as significant unobservable inputs were used in the valuation report. The impairment
charges as a result of the valuations, which represented the difference between the fair value less cost to sell and the
carrying amount of the assets held for sale, were included in G&A expenses. Substantially all of the assets held for
sale as of April 27, 2013 were sold by the end of fiscal 2013.
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(d) Other Fair Value Disclosures

The carrying value of the Company’s investments in privately held companies that were accounted for under the cost
method was $273 million and $242 million as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, respectively. It was not practicable
to estimate the fair value of this portfolio.

The fair value of the Company’s short-term loan receivables and financed service contracts approximates their carrying
value due to their short duration. The aggregate carrying value of the Company’s long-term loan receivables and
financed service contracts and other as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 was $1.7 billion and $2.1 billion,
respectively. The estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term loan receivables and financed service contracts and
other approximates their carrying value. The Company uses significant unobservable inputs in determining discounted
cash flows to estimate the fair value of its loan receivables and financed service contracts, and therefore they are
categorized as Level 3.

As of April 26, 2014, the fair value of the Company’s senior notes and other long-term debt was $22.4 billion with a
carrying amount of $20.9 billion. This compares to a fair value of $17.6 billion and a carrying amount of $16.2 billion
as of July 27, 2013. The fair value of the senior notes and other long-term debt was determined based on observable
market prices in a less active market and was categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

10.Borrowings
(a) Short-Term Debt
The following table summarizes the Company’s short-term debt (in millions, except percentages):

April 26, 2014 July 27, 2013

Amount Effective Rate Amount Effective Rate
Current portion of long-term debt $500 3.11 % $3,273 0.63 %
Other notes and borrowings 8 2.60 % 10 2.52 %
Total short-term debt $508 $3,283

In fiscal 2011, the Company established a short-term debt financing program of up to $3.0 billion through the issuance
of commercial paper notes. The Company uses the proceeds from the issuance of commercial paper notes for general
corporate purposes. In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company repaid $1.0 billion of indebtedness under
commercial paper and had no commercial paper outstanding as of each of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013.

The effective interest rate on the current portion of long-term debt includes the impact of interest rate swaps, as
discussed further in "(b) Long-Term Debt." The Company repaid senior floating-rate and fixed-rate notes upon their
maturity in the third quarter of fiscal 2014 for an aggregate principal amount of $3.3 billion. Other notes and
borrowings consist of the short-term portion of secured borrowings associated with customer financing arrangements.
These notes and credit facilities were subject to various terms and foreign currency market interest rates pursuant to
individual financial arrangements between the financing institution and the applicable foreign subsidiary.

As of April 26, 2014, the estimated fair value of the short-term debt approximates its carrying value due to the short
maturities.
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(b)Long-Term Debt
The following table summarizes the Company’s long-term debt (in millions, except percentages):

April 26, 2014 July 27, 2013

Maturity Date Amount  Effective Rate Amount  Effective Rate
Senior notes:
Floating-rate notes:
Three-month LIBOR plus 0.25% March 14, 2014 $— — $1,250 0.62%
Three-month LIBOR plus 0.05% September 3, 2015 (1) 850 0.38% — —
Three-month LIBOR plus 0.28% March 3, 2017 (1) 1,000 0.58% — —
Three-month LIBOR plus 0.50% March 1, 2019 (1) 500 0.79% — —
Fixed-rate notes:
1.625% March 14, 2014 — — 2,000 0.64%
2.90% November 17,2014 500 3.11% 500 3.11%
5.50% February 22, 2016 3,000 3.05% 3,000 3.07%
1.10% March 3, 2017 (1) 2,400 0.56% — —
3.15% March 14, 2017 750 0.80% 750 0.84%
4.95% February 15, 2019 2,000 4.69% 2,000 4.70%
2.125% March 1, 2019 (1) 1,750 0.77% — —
4.45% January 15, 2020 2,500 2.98% 2,500 4.15%
2.90% March 4, 2021 (1) 500 0.93% — —
3.625% March 3, 2024 (1) 1,000 1.05% — —
5.90% February 15, 2039 2,000 6.11% 2,000 6.11%
5.50% January 15, 2040 2,000 5.67% 2,000 5.67%
Other long-term debt 6 2.52% 21 1.46%
Total 20,756 16,021
Unaccreted discount (65 ) (65 )
Hgdge accounting fair value 193 245
adjustments
Total $20,884 $16,201
Reported as:
Current portion of long-term debt $500 $3,273
Long-term debt 20,384 12,928
Total $20,884 $16,201

() In March 2014, the Company issued senior notes for an aggregate principal amount of $8.0 billion.

To achieve its interest rate risk management objectives, the Company entered into interest rate swaps with an
aggregate notional amount of $10.4 billion designated as fair value hedges of certain of its fixed-rate senior notes. In
effect, these swaps convert the fixed interest rates of the fixed-rate notes to floating interest rates based on the London
InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The gains and losses related to changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps
substantially offset changes in the fair value of the hedged portion of the underlying debt that are attributable to the
changes in market interest rates. For additional information, see Note 11.

The effective rates for the fixed-rate debt include the interest on the notes, the accretion of the discount and, if
applicable, adjustments related to hedging. Interest is payable semiannually on each class of the senior fixed-rate notes
and payable quarterly on the floating-rate notes. Each of the senior fixed-rate notes is redeemable by the Company at
any time, subject to a make-whole premium.
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The senior notes rank at par with the commercial paper notes that may be issued in the future pursuant to the
Company’s short-term debt financing program, as discussed above under “(a) Short-Term Debt.” As of April 26, 2014,
the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.
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As of April 26, 2014, future principal payments for long-term debt, including the current portion, are summarized as
follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2014 (remaining three months) $—
2015 502
2016 3,853
2017 4,151
2018 —
Thereafter 12,250
Total $20,756
(c)Credit Facility

On February 17, 2012, the Company entered into a credit agreement with certain institutional lenders that provides for
a $3.0 billion unsecured revolving credit facility that is scheduled to expire on February 17, 2017. Any advances under
the credit agreement will accrue interest at rates that are equal to, based on certain conditions, either (i) the higher of
the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, Bank of America’s “prime rate” as announced from time to time, or one-month
LIBOR plus 1.00% or (ii) LIBOR plus a margin that is based on the Company’s senior debt credit ratings as published
by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services, LLC and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. The credit agreement requires the
Company to comply with certain covenants, including that it maintain an interest coverage ratio as defined in the
agreement. As of April 26, 2014, the Company was in compliance with the required interest coverage ratio and the
other covenants, and the Company had not borrowed any funds under the credit facility.

The Company may also, upon the agreement of either the existing lenders or additional lenders not currently parties to
the agreement, increase the commitments under the credit facility by up to an additional $2.0 billion and/or extend the
expiration date of the credit facility by up to two additional years, or up to February 17, 2019.

11.Derivative Instruments

(a) Summary of Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments primarily to manage exposures to foreign currency exchange rate, interest
rate, and equity price risks. The Company’s primary objective in holding derivatives is to reduce the volatility of
earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and equity prices.
The Company’s derivatives expose it to credit risk to the extent that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms
of the agreement. The Company does, however, seek to mitigate such risks by limiting its counterparties to major
financial institutions. In addition, the potential risk of loss with any one counterparty resulting from this type of credit
risk is monitored. Management does not expect material losses as a result of defaults by counterparties.
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The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments and the line items on the Consolidated Balance Sheets to
which they were recorded are summarized as follows (in millions):

DERIVATIVE ASSETS
Balance Sheet April 26,
Line Item 2014

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives Other current assets $17

Interest rate derivatives Other assets 126
Equity derivatives Other current assets —
Total 143

Derivatives not designated

as hedging instruments:

Foreign currency derivatives Other current assets 5
Equity derivatives Other assets —
Total 5
Total $148

DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

July 27, . April 26, July 27,
2013 Balance Sheet Line Item 2014 2013

$33 Other current liabilities ~ $3 $7
147 Other long-term liabilities 8 2

— Other current liabilities 39 155
180 50 164
2 Other current liabilities 4 7

— Other long-term liabilities — —

2 4 7
$182 $54 $171

The effects of the Company’s cash flow and net investment hedging instruments on other comprehensive income
(OCI) and the Consolidated Statements of Operations are summarized as follows (in millions):

GAINS (LOSSES) RECOGNIZED

IN OCI ON DERIVATIVES FOR THE

THREE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)
Derivatives designated as

. April 26, April 27,
.cash flow hedging 2014 2013
instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives $13 $(11
Total $13 $(11
Derivatives designated as net
investment hedging
instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives  $(10 ) $20

GAINS (LOSSES) RECOGNIZED

IN OCI ON DERIVATIVES FOR THE

NINE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)
Derivatives designated as

. April 26, April 27,
.cash flow hedging 2014 2013
instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives  $47 $58
Total $47 $58

Derivatives designated as net
investment hedging
instruments:

GAINS (LOSSES) RECLASSIFIED FROM

AOCI INTO INCOME FOR THE
THREE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)
Line Item in Statements April 26, April 27,
of Operations 2014 2013
Operating expenses $13 $3
Cost of sales—service 3 1

$16 $4
Other income (loss), net $— $—
GAINS (LOSSES) RECLASSIFIED FROM
AOCI INTO INCOME FOR THE
NINE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)
Line Item in Statements April 26, April 27,
of Operations 2014 2013
Operating expenses $36 $5
Cost of sales—service 8 2

$44 $7
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Foreign currency derivatives ~ $(13 ) $¢4 ) Other income (loss), net $— $—

As of April 26, 2014, the Company estimates that approximately $22 million of net derivative gains related to its cash
flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) will be reclassified into earnings within
the next 12 months.
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The effect on the Consolidated Statements of Operations of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges and
the underlying hedged items is summarized as follows (in millions):

GAINS (LOSSES) ON GAINS (LOSSES)

DERIVATIVE RELATED TO HEDGED
INSTRUMENTS FOR THE ITEMS FOR THE THREE
THREE MONTHS ENDED MONTHS ENDED
FD;rrlz,a;ZZSHDe Zzignr:‘ted % Lineltemin Statements April 26,  April27,  April26,  April 27,
of Operations 2014 2013 2014 2013
Instruments
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net  $(8 ) $(45 ) $8 $45
Interest rate derivatives Interest expense 8 (11 ) (8 ) 11
Total $— $(56 ) $— $56
GAINS (LOSSES) ON GAINS (LOSSES)
DERIVATIVE RELATED TO HEDGED
INSTRUMENTS FOR THE ITEMS FOR THE NINE
NINE MONTHS ENDED MONTHS ENDED
FD;rrlz,a;ZZSHDe Zzignr:‘ted % Lineltemin Statements April 26,  April27,  April26,  April 27,
of Operations 2014 2013 2014 2013
Instruments
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net  $(55 ) $(87 ) $55 $87
Interest rate derivatives Interest expense 27 ) (40 ) 26 40
Total $(82 ) $(127 ) $81 $127

The effect on the Consolidated Statements of Operations of derivative instruments not designated as hedges is
summarized as follows (in millions):
GAINS (LOSSES) FOR THE GAINS (LOSSES) FOR THE
THREE MONTHS ENDED NINE MONTHS ENDED

Derivatives Not Designated Line Item in Statements of April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,
as Hedging Instruments Operations 2014 2013 2014 2013
Foreign currency Other income (loss), net ~ $36 $(90 ) $16 $(78 )
derivatives
Total ret““.] swaps—deferredoperaﬁng expenses 4 12 33 45
compensation
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net 9 (6 ) 33 6
Total $49 $(84 ) $82 $(27 )
The notional amounts of the Company’s outstanding derivatives are summarized as follows (in millions):

April 26, July 27,

2014 2013
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives—cash flow hedges $432 $1,885
Interest rate derivatives 10,400 5,250
Net investment hedging instruments 328 662
Equity derivatives 238 1,098
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives 2,864 3,739
Total return swaps—deferred compensation 411 358
Total $14,673 $12,992
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(b) Offsetting of Derivative Instruments
The Company presents its derivative instruments at gross fair values in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. However,
the Company’s master netting and other similar arrangements with the respective counterparties allow for net
settlement under certain conditions, which are designed to reduce credit risk by permitting net settlement with the
same counterparty. To further limit credit risk, the Company also enters into collateral security arrangements related
to certain derivative instruments whereby cash is posted as collateral between the counterparties based on the fair
market value of the derivative instrument. Information related to these offsetting arrangements is summarized as
follows (in millions):

OFFSETTING OF DERIVATIVE ASSETS

) ) Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Gross Amounts Offset in Consolidated Balance Consolidated Balance Sheets, but with Legal

Sheets Rights to Offset
Gross Gross Amounts Net Amount Gross Derivative Cash
April 26, 2014 Amount. of Offset 1'n Present.ed on Amount§ with Collateral Net
’ Recognized Consolidated Consolidated  Legal Rights to Received Amount
Assets Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Offset
Derivatives $148 $— $148 $(36 ) $(5 ) $107

OFFSETTING OF DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

) ) Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Gross Amounts Offset in Consolidated Balance Consolidated Balance Sheets, but with Legal

Sheets Rights to Offset
Gross Gross Amounts Net Amount Gross Derivative Cash
April 26, 2014 Amount. of Offset 1.n Present.ed on Amount§ with Collateral Net
’ Recognized Consolidated Consolidated  Legal Rights to Pledged Amount
Liabilities Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Offset
Derivatives $54 $— $54 $(36 ) $(16 ) $2

OFFSETTING OF DERIVATIVE ASSETS

) ) Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Gross Amounts Offset in Consolidated Balance Consolidated Balance Sheets, but with Legal

Sheets

Rights to Offset
Gross Gross Amounts Net Amount Gross Derivative Cash
July 27, 2013 Amount' of Offset 1.n Present.ed on Amount§ with Collateral Net
’ Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Legal Rights to Received Amount
Assets Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Offset
Derivatives $182 $— $182 $(120 ) $— $62

OFFSETTING OF DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

) ) Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Gross Amounts Offset in Consolidated Balance Consolidated Balance Sheets, but with Legal

Sheets Rights to Offset
Gross Gross Amounts Net Amount Gross Derivative Cash
July 27, 2013 Amount' of Offset 1.n Present.ed on Amount§ with Collateral Net
’ Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Legal Rights to Pledged Amount
Liabilities Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Offset
Derivatives $171 $— $171 $(120 ) $— $51

(c)Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
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The Company conducts business globally in numerous currencies. Therefore, it is exposed to adverse movements in
foreign currency exchange rates. To limit the exposure related to foreign currency changes, the Company enters into
foreign currency contracts. The Company does not enter into such contracts for trading purposes.

The Company hedges forecasted foreign currency transactions related to certain operating expenses and service cost
of sales with currency options and forward contracts. These currency option and forward contracts, designated as cash
flow hedges, generally have maturities of less than 18 months. The Company assesses effectiveness based on changes
in total fair value of the derivatives. The effective portion of the derivative instrument’s gain or loss is initially reported
as a component of AOCI and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged exposure affects earnings. The
ineffective portion, if any, of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. During the periods presented, the
Company did not discontinue any cash flow hedges for which it was probable that a forecasted transaction would not
occur.
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The Company enters into foreign exchange forward and option contracts to reduce the short-term effects of foreign
currency fluctuations on assets and liabilities such as foreign currency receivables, including long-term customer
financings, investments, and payables. These derivatives are not designated as hedging instruments. Gains and losses
on the contracts are included in other income (loss), net, and substantially offset foreign exchange gains and losses
from the remeasurement of intercompany balances or other current assets, investments, or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the reporting entity.

The Company hedges certain net investments in its foreign operations with forward contracts to reduce the effects of
foreign currency fluctuations on the Company’s net investment in those foreign subsidiaries. These derivative
instruments generally have maturities of up to six months.

(d)Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Derivatives, Investments The Company’s primary objective for holding fixed income securities is to
achieve an appropriate investment return consistent with preserving principal and managing risk. To realize these
objectives, the Company may utilize interest rate swaps or other derivatives designated as fair value or cash flow
hedges. As of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, the Company did not have any outstanding interest rate derivatives
related to its fixed income securities.

Interest Rate Derivatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge, Long-Term Debt In fiscal 2014 and 2013, the Company
entered into interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges related to fixed-rate senior notes that are due on
various dates from 2017 through 2024. In the previous periods, the Company entered into interest rate swaps
designated as fair value hedges related to fixed-rate senior notes that are due in 2016 and 2017. Under these interest
rate swaps, the Company receives fixed-rate interest payments and makes interest payments based on LIBOR plus a
fixed number of basis points. The effect of such swaps is to convert the fixed interest rates of the senior fixed-rate
notes to floating interest rates based on LIBOR. The gains and losses related to changes in the fair value of the interest
rate swaps are included in interest expense and substantially offset changes in the fair value of the hedged portion of
the underlying debt that are attributable to the changes in market interest rates. The fair value of the interest rate swaps
was reflected in other assets and other long-term liabilities.

(e)Equity Price Risk

The Company may hold equity securities for strategic purposes or to diversify its overall investment portfolio. The
publicly traded equity securities in the Company’s portfolio are subject to price risk. To manage its exposure to
changes in the fair value of certain equity securities, the Company has entered into equity derivatives that are
designated as fair value hedges. The changes in the value of the hedging instruments are included in other income
(loss), net, and offset the change in the fair value of the underlying hedged investment. In addition, the Company
periodically manages the risk of its investment portfolio by entering into equity derivatives that are not designated as
accounting hedges. The changes in the fair value of these derivatives are also included in other income (loss), net.
The Company is also exposed to variability in compensation charges related to certain deferred

compensation obligations to employees. Although not designated as accounting hedges, the Company utilizes
derivatives such as total return swaps to economically hedge this exposure.

(f)Hedge Effectiveness

For the fiscal periods presented, amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness were not material for
fair value, cash flow, and net investment hedges. In addition, hedge ineffectiveness for fair value, cash flow, and net
investment hedges was not material for any of the fiscal periods presented.

(g)Collateral and Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features

For certain derivative instruments, the Company and its counterparties have entered into arrangements requiring the
party that is in a liability position from a mark-to-market standpoint to post cash collateral to the other party. See
further discussion under "(b) Offsetting of Derivative Instruments" above.

In addition, certain derivative instruments are executed under agreements that have provisions requiring the Company
and the counterparty to maintain a specified credit rating from certain credit-rating agencies. Under such agreements,
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if the Company’s or the counterparty’s credit rating falls below a specified credit rating, either party has the right to
request collateral on the derivatives’ net liability position. The fair market value of these derivatives as of April 26,
2014 and July 27, 2013 was $67 million and $88 million, respectively.
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12.Commitments and Contingencies

(a)Operating Leases

The Company leases office space in many U.S. locations. Outside the United States, larger leased sites include sites in
Belgium, China, France, Germany, India, Israel, Italy, Japan, Norway, and the United Kingdom. The Company also
leases equipment and vehicles. Future minimum lease payments under all noncancelable operating leases with an
initial term in excess of one year as of April 26, 2014 are as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2014 (remaining three months) $103
2015 332
2016 227
2017 157
2018 121
Thereafter 243
Total $1,183

(b)Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers and Suppliers

The Company purchases components from a variety of suppliers and uses several contract manufacturers to provide
manufacturing services for its products. During the normal course of business, in order to manage manufacturing lead
times and help ensure adequate component supply, the Company enters into agreements with contract manufacturers
and suppliers that either allow them to procure inventory based upon criteria as defined by the Company or establish
the parameters defining the Company’s requirements. A significant portion of the Company’s reported purchase
commitments arising from these agreements consists of firm, noncancelable, and unconditional commitments. In
certain instances, these agreements allow the Company the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust the Company’s
requirements based on its business needs prior to firm orders being placed. As of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, the
Company had total purchase commitments for inventory of $4,038 million and $4,033 million, respectively.

The Company records a liability for firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments for quantities in
excess of its future demand forecasts consistent with the valuation of the Company’s excess and obsolete inventory. As
of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, the liability for these purchase commitments was $156 million and $172 million,
respectively, and was included in other current liabilities.

(c)Other Commitments

In connection with the Company’s business combinations, the Company has agreed to pay certain additional amounts
contingent upon the achievement of certain agreed-upon technology, development, product, or other milestones, or
upon the continued employment with the Company of certain employees of the acquired entities.

The following table summarizes the compensation expense related to acquisitions (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Compensation expense related to acquisitions $95 $44 $505 $79

As of April 26, 2014, the Company estimated that future cash compensation expense of up to $645 million may be
required to be recognized pursuant to the applicable business combination agreements, which included the remaining
potential compensation expense related to Insieme Networks, Inc. as more fully discussed immediately below.
Insieme Networks, Inc. In the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company made an investment in Insieme Networks,
Inc. ("Insieme"), an early-stage company focused on research and development in the data center market. As set forth
in the agreement between the Company and Insieme, this investment included $100 million of funding and a license to
certain of the Company’s technology. Immediately prior to the call option exercise and acquisition described below,
the Company owned approximately 83% of Insieme as a result of these investments and consolidated the results of
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Insieme in its Consolidated Financial Statements. In connection with this investment, the Company and Insieme
entered into a put/call option agreement
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that provided the Company with the right to purchase the remaining interests in Insieme. In addition, the
noncontrolling interest holders could require the Company to purchase their shares upon the occurrence of certain
events.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company exercised its call option and entered into an agreement to
purchase the remaining interests in Insieme. The acquisition closed in the second quarter of fiscal 2014, at which time
the former noncontrolling interest holders became eligible to receive up to two milestone payments, which will be
determined using agreed-upon formulas based primarily on revenue for certain of Insieme’s products. During the three
and nine months ended April 26, 2014, the Company recorded compensation expense of $52 million and $363 million
related to the fair value of the vested portion of amounts that are expected to be earned by the former noncontrolling
interest holders. Continued vesting and changes to the fair value of the amounts probable of being earned will result in
adjustments to the recorded compensation expense in future periods. Based on the terms of the agreement, the
Company has determined that the maximum amount that could be recorded as compensation expense by the Company
is approximately $856 million, net of forfeitures and including the $363 million that has been expensed through

April 26, 2014. The milestone payments, if earned, are expected to be paid primarily during fiscal 2016 and fiscal
2017.

The Company also has certain funding commitments, primarily related to its investments in privately held companies
and venture funds, some of which are based on the achievement of certain agreed-upon milestones, and some of which
are required to be funded on demand. The funding commitments were $276 million and $263 million as of April 26,
2014 and July 27, 2013, respectively.

(d) Variable Interest Entities

VCE Joint Venture VCE is a joint venture that the Company formed in fiscal 2010 with EMC Corporation (“EMC”),
with investments from VMware, Inc. (“VMware”’) and Intel Corporation. VCE helps organizations leverage
best-in-class technologies and disciplines from Cisco, EMC, and VMware to enable the transformation to cloud
computing.

As of April 26, 2014, the Company’s cumulative gross investment in VCE was approximately $679 million, inclusive
of accrued interest, and its ownership percentage was approximately 35%. The Company invested $147 million
during the nine months ended April 26, 2014.

The Company accounts for its investment in VCE under the equity method, and its portion of VCE’s net loss is
recognized in other income (loss), net. The Company’s share of VCE’s losses, based upon its portion of the overall
funding, was approximately 36.8% for each of the three and nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013. As
of April 26, 2014, the Company had recorded cumulative losses from VCE of $584 million since inception, of which
losses of $52 million and $49 million were recorded for the three months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013,
respectively, and losses of $163 million and $135 million were recorded for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and
April 27, 2013, respectively. The Company’s carrying value in VCE as of April 26, 2014 of $95 million was recorded
in other assets.

Over the next 12 months, as VCE scales its operations, the Company expects that it will make additional investments
in VCE and may incur additional losses proportionate with the Company’s share ownership.

From time to time, EMC and Cisco may enter into guarantee agreements on behalf of VCE to indemnify third parties,
such as customers, for monetary damages. Such guarantees were not material as of April 26, 2014.

Other Variable Interest Entities In the ordinary course of business, the Company has investments in other privately
held companies and provides financing to certain customers. These other privately held companies and customers may
be considered to be variable interest entities. The Company evaluates on an ongoing basis its investments in these
other privately held companies and its customer financings, and has determined that as of April 26, 2014 there were
no other variable interest entities required to be consolidated in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(e)Product Warranties and Guarantees
The following table summarizes the activity related to product warranty liability during the nine months ended April
26, 2014 and April 27, 2013 (in millions):

Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27,

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $402 $373
Provision for warranties issued 532 480
Payments (504 ) (462 )
Balance at end of period $430 $391

The Company accrues for warranty costs as part of its cost of sales based on associated material product costs, labor
costs for technical support staff, and associated overhead. The Company’s products are generally covered by a
warranty for periods ranging from 90 days to five years, and for some products the Company provides a limited
lifetime warranty.

The Company also provides financing guarantees, which are generally for various third-party financing arrangements
to channel partners and other end-user customers. For additional information, see Note 7. The Company’s other
guarantee arrangements as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 that were subject to recognition and disclosure
requirements were not material.

(f) Supplier Component Remediation Liability

The Company has recorded in other current liabilities a liability for the expected remediation cost for certain products
sold in prior fiscal years containing memory components manufactured by a single supplier between 2005 and 2010.
These components are widely used across the industry and are included in a number of the Company's products.
Defects in some of these components have caused products to fail after a power cycle event. Defect rates due to this
issue have been and are expected to be low. However, recently the Company has seen a small number of its customers
experience a growing number of failures in their networks as a result of this component problem. Although the
majority of these products are beyond the Company's warranty terms, the Company is proactively working with
customers on mitigation. Prior to the second quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company had a liability of $63 million related
to this issue for expected remediation costs based on the intended approach at that time. In February 2014, on the basis
of the growing number of failures described above, the Company decided to expand its approach which resulted in an
additional charge to product cost of sales of $655 million being recorded for the second quarter of fiscal 2014. As of
April 26, 2014, the remaining supplier component remediation liability was $702 million.

(g) Indemnifications

In the normal course of business, the Company indemnifies other parties, including customers, lessors, and parties to
other transactions with the Company, with respect to certain matters. The Company has agreed to hold such parties
harmless against losses arising from a breach of representations or covenants or out of intellectual property
infringement or other claims made against certain parties. These agreements may limit the time within which an
indemnification claim can be made and the amount of the claim.

The Company has an obligation to indemnify certain expenses pursuant to such agreements in a case involving certain
of the Company’s service provider customers that are subject to patent infringement claims asserted by Sprint
Communications Company, L.P. (“Sprint”) in the United States District Court for the District of Kansas filed on
December 19, 2011 (including one case that was later transferred to the District of Delaware). Sprint alleges that the
service providers infringe Sprint’s patents by offering Voice over Internet Protocol-based telephone services utilizing
products provided by the Company and other manufacturers. Sprint is seeking monetary damages. Trial dates have
been set for the first half of calendar year 2015. The parties intend to conduct a mediation later this calendar year and
the Company may be asked to participate. The mediation could result in a resolution of the case for some or all of the
Company's service provider customers. The Company believes that the service providers have strong defenses and

55



Edgar Filing: CISCO SYSTEMS, INC. - Form 10-Q

that its products do not infringe the patents subject to the claims. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the litigation
process, which involves numerous defendants, the Company is unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate outcome of
this litigation at this time. Should the plaintiff prevail in litigation, mediation, or settlement, the Company may have
an obligation to indemnify its service provider customers for damages, mediation awards, or settlement amounts
arising from their use of Cisco products.
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In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its officers and directors, and the
Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws contain similar indemnification obligations to the Company’s agents.

It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the
Company’s limited history with prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each
particular agreement. Historically, payments made by the Company under these agreements have not had a material
effect on the Company’s operating results, financial position, or cash flows.

(h) Legal Proceedings

Brazil Brazilian authorities have investigated the Company’s Brazilian subsidiary and certain of its current and former
employees, as well as a Brazilian importer of the Company’s products, and its affiliates and employees, relating to
alleged evasion of import taxes and alleged improper transactions involving the subsidiary and the importer. Brazilian
tax authorities have assessed claims against the Company’s Brazilian subsidiary based on a theory of joint liability with
the Brazilian importer for import taxes, interest, and penalties. In addition to claims asserted by the Brazilian federal
tax authorities in prior fiscal years, tax authorities from the Brazilian state of Sao Paulo have asserted similar claims
on the same legal basis in prior fiscal years. In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, the Brazilian federal tax authorities
asserted an additional claim against the Company’s Brazilian subsidiary based on a theory of joint liability with respect
to an alleged underpayment of income taxes, social taxes, interest, and penalties by a Brazilian distributor.

The asserted claims by Brazilian federal tax authorities are for calendar years 2003 through 2008, and the asserted
claims by the tax authorities from the state of Sao Paulo are for calendar years 2005 through 2007. The total asserted
claims by Brazilian state and federal tax authorities aggregate to approximately $389 million for the alleged evasion of
import and other taxes, approximately $1.3 billion for interest, and approximately $1.7 billion for various penalties, all
determined using an exchange rate as of April 26, 2014. The Company has completed a thorough review of the
matters and believes the asserted claims against the Company’s Brazilian subsidiary are without merit, and the
Company is defending the claims vigorously. While the Company believes there is no legal basis for the alleged
liability, due to the complexities and uncertainty surrounding the judicial process in Brazil and the nature of the claims
asserting joint liability with the importer, the Company is unable to determine the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome against its Brazilian subsidiary and is unable to reasonably estimate a range of loss, if any. The Company
does not expect a final judicial determination for several years.

Russia and the Commonwealth of Independent States At the request of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
and the U.S. Department of Justice, the Company is conducting an investigation into allegations which the Company
and those agencies received regarding possible violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act involving business
activities of the Company's operations in Russia and certain of the Commonwealth of Independent States, and by
certain resellers of the Company’s products in those countries. The Company takes any such allegations very seriously
and is fully cooperating with and sharing the results of its investigation with the Commission and the

Department. While the outcome of the Company's investigation is currently not determinable, the Company does not
expect that it will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows. The countries that are the subject of the investigation collectively comprise less than two percent of the
Company’s revenues.

VirnetX The Company was subject to patent claims asserted by VirnetX, Inc. on August 11, 2010 in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. VirnetX alleged that some Cisco products that implement a method
for secure communication using virtual private networks infringe certain patents. VirnetX sought monetary damages.
The trial on these claims began on March 4, 2013. On March 14, 2013, the jury entered a verdict finding that the
Company’s accused products do not infringe any of VirnetX’s patents asserted in the lawsuit. On April 3, 2013,
VirnetX filed a motion seeking a new trial on the issue of infringement, which the Company opposed. The Court held
a hearing on VirnetX’s motion for a new trial in June 2013. On March 31, 2014 the court denied VirnetX's new trial
motion. VirnetX has not appealed that decision, which is therefore final.
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XpertUniverse The Company was subject to numerous patent, tort, and contract claims asserted by XpertUniverse on
March 10, 2009 in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. Shortly before trial, the Court
dismissed on summary judgment all claims initially asserted by XpertUniverse except a claim for infringement of two
XpertUniverse patents and a claim for fraud by concealment. XpertUniverse’s remaining patent claims alleged that
three Cisco products in the field of expertise location software infringed two XpertUniverse patents. XpertUniverse’s
fraud by concealment claim alleged that the Company did not disclose its decision not to admit XpertUniverse into a
partner program. The trial on these remaining claims began on March 11, 2013. On March 22, 2013, the jury entered a
verdict finding that two of the Company’s products infringed two of XpertUniverse’s patents and awarded
XpertUniverse damages of less than $35 thousand. The jury also found for XpertUniverse on its fraud by concealment
claim and awarded damages of $70 million. In May and June 2013, the Company filed post-trial motions. On
November 20, 2013 the trial court granted the Company's motion for judgment as a matter of law, overturned the jury’s
finding on the fraud by concealment claim, and vacated the $70 million verdict. Separately, the trial court agreed with
the jury that the Company infringed XpertUniverse’s patents, and affirmed the verdict awarding XpertUniverse
approximately $35 thousand in damages plus accrued interest. On February 4, 2014, XpertUniverse filed a notice of
appeal from the trial court’s decision.

Rockstar The Company and some of its service provider customers are subject to patent claims asserted in December
2013 in the Eastern District of Texas and the District of Delaware by subsidiaries of the Rockstar Consortium
("Rockstar"). Rockstar, whose members include Apple, Microsoft, LM Ericsson, Sony, and Blackberry, purchased a
portfolio of patents out of the Nortel Networks’ bankruptcy proceedings (the “Nortel Portfolio”). Rockstar’s subsidiaries
allege that some of the Company’s NGN Routing, Switching and Collaboration products, as well as video solutions
deployed by its service provider customers, infringe some of the patents in the Nortel Portfolio. Rockstar seeks
monetary damages. A trial date for one service provider customer has been set for October 2015; no other trial dates
have been set. The Company has various defenses to the patent infringement allegations, and has various offensive
claims against Rockstar and some of its consortium members available to it as well, and the Company will also
explore alternative means of resolution. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the litigation process, which involves
numerous lawsuits and parties, the Company is unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate outcome and a range of
loss, if any, of these litigations at this time.

In addition, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business, including intellectual property litigation. While the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable,
the Company does not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a material adverse effect on its
consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

13.Shareholders’ Equity

(a)Cash Dividends on Shares of Common Stock

During the nine months ended April 26, 2014, the Company declared and paid cash dividends of $0.53 per common
share, or $2.8 billion, on the Company’s outstanding common stock. During the nine months ended April 27, 2013, the
Company declared and paid cash dividends of $0.45 per common share, or $2.4 billion, on the Company’s outstanding
common stock.

Any future dividends will be subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.

(b)Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program. As of April 26, 2014,
the Company’s Board of Directors had authorized an aggregate repurchase of up to $97 billion of common stock under
this program, and the remaining authorized repurchase amount was $10.1 billion, with no termination date. A
summary of the stock repurchase activity under the stock repurchase program, reported based on the trade date, is
summarized as follows (in millions, except per-share amounts):
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Shares Weighted- Amount
Repurchased Average Price Repurchased
per Share
Cumulative balance at July 27, 2013 3,868 $20.40 $78,906
Repurchase of common stock under the stock repurchase program (1) 359 22.31 8,025
Cumulative balance at April 26, 2014 4227 $20.56 $86,931

() Includes stock repurchases of $60 million, which were pending settlement as of April 26, 2014. There were no
stock repurchases pending settlement as of July 27, 2013.
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The purchase price for the shares of the Company’s stock repurchased is reflected as a reduction to shareholders’
equity. The Company is required to allocate the purchase price of the repurchased shares as (i) a reduction to retained
earnings and (ii) a reduction of common stock and additional paid-in capital. Issuance of common stock and the tax
benefit related to employee stock incentive plans are recorded as an increase to common stock and additional paid-in
capital.

(c)Restricted Stock Unit Withholdings

For the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, the Company repurchased approximately 14 million
and 13 million shares, or $345 million and $249 million, of common stock, respectively, in settlement of employee tax
withholding obligations due upon the vesting of restricted stock or stock units.

14.Employee Benefit Plans

(a) Employee Stock Incentive Plans

Stock Incentive Plan Program Description As of April 26, 2014, the Company had four stock incentive plans: the
2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”); the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan’); the Cisco Systems, Inc. SA
Acquisition Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “SA Acquisition Plan”); and the Cisco Systems, Inc. WebEx Acquisition
Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “WebEx Acquisition Plan”). In addition, the Company has, in connection with the
acquisitions of various companies, assumed the share-based awards granted under stock incentive plans of the
acquired companies or issued share-based awards in replacement thereof. Share-based awards are designed to reward
employees for their long-term contributions to the Company and provide incentives for them to remain with the
Company. The number and frequency of share-based awards are based on competitive practices, operating results of
the Company, government regulations, and other factors. Since the inception of the stock incentive plans, the
Company has granted share-based awards to a significant percentage of its employees, and the majority has been
granted to employees below the vice president level. The Company’s primary stock incentive plans are summarized as
follows:

2005 Plan As of April 26, 2014, the maximum number of shares issuable under the 2005 Plan over its term was 694
million shares plus the number of any shares underlying awards outstanding on November 15, 2007 under the 1996
Plan, the SA Acquisition Plan, and the WebEx Acquisition Plan that are forfeited or are terminated for any other
reason before being exercised or settled. If any awards granted under the 2005 Plan are forfeited or are terminated for
any other reason before being exercised or settled, the unexercised or unsettled shares underlying the awards will
again be available under the 2005 Plan. Starting November 19, 2013, shares withheld by the Company from an award
other than a stock option or stock appreciation right to satisfy withholding tax liabilities resulting from such award
will again be available for issuance, based on the fungible share ratio in effect on the date of grant.

Pursuant to an amendment approved by the Company’s shareholders on November 12, 2009, the number of shares
available for issuance under the 2005 Plan is reduced by 1.5 shares for each share awarded as a stock grant or a stock
unit, and any shares underlying awards outstanding under the 1996 Plan, the SA Acquisition Plan, and the WebEx
Acquisition Plan that expire unexercised at the end of their maximum terms become available for reissuance under the
2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan permits the granting of stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units (RSUs), the
vesting of which may be performance-based or market-based along with the requisite service requirement, and stock
appreciation rights to employees (including employee directors and officers), consultants of the Company and its
subsidiaries and affiliates, and non-employee directors of the Company. Stock options and stock appreciation rights
granted under the 2005 Plan have an exercise price of at least 100% of the fair market value of the underlying stock on
the grant date and prior to November 12, 2009 have an expiration date no later than nine years from the grant date.
The expiration date for stock options and stock appreciation rights granted subsequent to the amendment approved on
November 12, 2009 shall be no later than 10 years from the grant date.

The stock options will generally become exercisable for 20% or 25% of the option shares one year from the date of
grant and then ratably over the following 48 months or 36 months, respectively. Time-based stock grants and
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time-based RSUs will generally vest with respect to 20% or 25% of the shares or share units covered by the grant on
each of the first through fifth or fourth anniversaries of the date of the grant, respectively. Performance-based and
market-based RSUs typically vest at the end of the three-year requisite service period or earlier if the award recipient
meets certain retirement eligibility conditions. The Compensation and Management Development Committee of the
Board of Directors has the discretion to use different vesting schedules. Stock appreciation rights may be awarded in
combination with stock options or stock grants, and such awards shall provide that the stock appreciation rights will
not be exercisable unless the related stock options or stock grants are forfeited. Stock grants may be awarded in
combination with non-statutory stock options, and such awards may provide that the stock grants will be forfeited in
the event that the related non-statutory stock options are exercised.
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1996 Plan The 1996 Plan expired on December 31, 2006, and the Company can no longer make equity awards under
the 1996 Plan. The maximum number of shares issuable over the term of the 1996 Plan was 2.5 billion shares. Stock
options granted under the 1996 Plan have an exercise price of at least 100% of the fair market value of the underlying
stock on the grant date and expire no later than nine years from the grant date. The stock options generally became
exercisable for 20% or 25% of the option shares one year from the date of grant and then ratably over the following 48
months or 36 months, respectively. Certain other grants utilized a 60-month ratable vesting schedule. In addition, the
Board of Directors, or other committees administering the 1996 Plan, had the discretion to use a different vesting
schedule and did so from time to time.

Acquisition Plans In connection with the Company’s acquisitions of Scientific-Atlanta, Inc. (“Scientific-Atlanta”) and
WebEx Communications, Inc. (“WebEx”), the Company adopted the SA Acquisition Plan and the WebEx Acquisition
Plan, respectively, each effective upon completion of the applicable acquisition. These plans constitute assumptions,
amendments, restatements, and renamings of the 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of Scientific-Atlanta and the WebEx
Communications, Inc. Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, respectively. The plans permit the grant of
stock options, stock, stock units, and stock appreciation rights to certain employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and affiliates who had been employed by Scientific-Atlanta or its subsidiaries or WebEx or its
subsidiaries, as applicable. As a result of the shareholder approval of the amendment and extension of the 2005 Plan,
as of November 15, 2007, the Company will no longer make stock option grants or direct share issuances under either
the SA Acquisition Plan or the WebEx Acquisition Plan.

(b)Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which includes its subplan named the International Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (together, the “Purchase Plan), under which 471.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock
have been reserved for issuance as of April 26, 2014. Eligible employees are offered shares through a 24-month
offering period, which consists of four consecutive 6-month purchase periods. Employees may purchase a limited
number of shares of the Company’s stock at a discount of up to 15% of the lesser of the market value at the beginning
of the offering period or the end of each 6-month purchase period. The Purchase Plan is scheduled to terminate on
January 3, 2020. The Company issued 14 million and 18 million shares under the Purchase Plan during the nine
months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, respectively. As of April 26, 2014, 38 million shares were available
for issuance under the Purchase Plan.

(c)Summary of Share-Based Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense consists primarily of expenses for stock options, stock purchase rights, restricted
stock, and restricted stock units granted to employees. The following table summarizes share-based compensation
expense (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Cost of sales—product $12 $10 $34 $31
Cost of sales—service 39 34 112 105
Share-based compensation expense in cost of sales 51 44 146 136
Research and development 106 72 306 228
Sales and marketing 144 118 408 383
General and administrative 52 38 153 136
Restructuring and other charges — — 4 ) (3 )
Share-based compensation expense in operating expenses 302 228 863 744
Total share-based compensation expense $353 $272 $1,009 $880
Income tax benefit for share-based compensation $86 $73 $246 $232
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As of April 26, 2014, the total compensation cost related to unvested share-based awards not yet recognized was $2.7
billion, which is expected to be recognized over approximately 2.4 years on a weighted-average basis.
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(d)Share-Based Awards Available for Grant

A summary of share-based awards available for grant is as follows (in millions):

BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012

Restricted stock, stock units, and other share-based awards granted

Share-based awards canceled/forfeited/expired

Other
BALANCE AT JULY 27, 2013

Restricted stock, stock units, and other share-based awards granted

Share-based awards canceled/forfeited/expired

Additional shares reserved

Shares withheld for taxes and not issued
Other

BALANCE AT APRIL 26, 2014

Share-Based
Awards
Available for
Grant

218

(102 )
115

3 )
228

(92 )
29

135

2

1

303

As reflected in the preceding table, for each share awarded as restricted stock or subject to a restricted stock unit
award under the 2005 Plan, an equivalent of 1.5 shares was deducted from the available share-based award balance.
For restricted stock units that were awarded with vesting contingent upon the achievement of future financial
performance or market-based metrics, the maximum awards that can be achieved upon full vesting of such awards

were reflected in the preceding table.
(e)Restricted Stock and Stock Unit Awards

A summary of the restricted stock and stock unit activity, which includes time-based and performance-based or
market-based restricted stock units, is as follows (in millions, except per-share amounts):

UNVESTED BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012
Granted and assumed

Vested

Canceled/forfeited

UNVESTED BALANCE AT JULY 27, 2013
Granted and assumed

Vested

Canceled/forfeited

UNVESTED BALANCE AT APRIL 26, 2014

37

Restricted Stock/Stoc

Units

128
72
(46
(11
143
67
(43
(10
157

Weighted-Average
rant Date Fair

Value per Share

$19.46

18.52

20.17 $932

18.91

18.80

20.74

19.56 $998

18.70

$19.43

Aggregated Fair
Market Value
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(f) Stock Option Awards
A summary of the stock option activity is as follows (in millions, except per-share amounts):
STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

Number Weighted-Average
Outstanding Exercise Price per Share
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 520 $ 22.68
Assumed from acquisitions 10 0.77
Exercised (154 ) 18.51
Canceled/forfeited/expired (100 ) 22.18
BALANCE AT JULY 27,2013 276 24.44
Assumed from acquisitions 6 3.69
Exercised (45 ) 17.54
Canceled/forfeited/expired (14 ) 27.41
BALANCE AT APRIL 26, 2014 223 $ 25.09

The following table summarizes significant ranges of outstanding and exercisable stock options as of April 26, 2014
(in millions, except years and share prices):
STOCK OPTIONS
STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Averagggregate Weighted-Averagggregate

Range of Exercise Number Remaining ) ) TS umber ) ) TS
. . . Exercise Price Intrinsic . Exercise Price Intrinsic
Prices Outstandinf@ontractual Life Exercisable
X per Share Value per Share Value
(in Years)
$ 0.01 -15.00 9 52 $ 4.29 $180 4 $ 6.11 $85
15.01 — 18.00 25 0.5 17.81 128 25 17.81 128
18.01 —20.00 7 0.6 19.22 25 7 19.22 25
20.01 —25.00 76 1.4 22.85 15 76 22.85 15
25.01 — 30.00 28 2.1 26.59 — 28 26.59 —
30.01 — 35.00 78 2.2 32.16 — 78 32.16 —
Total 223 1.8 $ 25.09 $348 218 $ 25.57 $253

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on the Company’s
closing stock price of $23.00 as of April 25, 2014, that would have been received by the option holders had those
option holders exercised their stock options as of that date. The total number of in-the-money stock options
exercisable as of April 26, 2014 was 47 million. As of July 27, 2013, 271 million outstanding stock options were
exercisable, and the weighted-average exercise price was $24.84.
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(g) Valuation of Employee Share-Based Awards

Time-based restricted stock units and performance-based restricted stock units (PRSUs) that are based on the

Company’s financial performance metrics or non-financial operating goals are valued using the market value of the

Company’s common stock on the date of grant, discounted for the present value of expected dividends. On the date of

grant, the Company estimated the fair value of the total shareholder return (TSR) component of the PRSUs using a

Monte Carlo simulation model. The valuation of time-based RSUs and PRSUs is summarized as follows:
PERFORMANCE RESTRICTED

RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS STOCK UNITS
Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 April 27,2013 April 26,2014  April 27, 2013
Number of shares granted (in millions) 6 4 2 —
Grant date fair value per share $19.95 $19.59 19.85 N/A
Weighted-average assumptions/inputs:
Expected dividend yield 3.1 % 2.7 % 3.5 % N/A
Range of risk-free interest rates 0.0% - 1.7% 0.1% - 0.9% 0.1% - 1.7% N/A
Range of expected volatilities for index N/A N/A N/A N/A
PERFORMANCE RESTRICTED
RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS STOCK UNITS
Nine Months Ended April 26,2014  April 27,2013  April 26,2014 April 27, 2013
Number of shares granted (in millions) 53 56 6 4
Grant date fair value per share $20.50 $17.47 $21.73 $19.26
Weighted-average assumptions/inputs:
Expected dividend yield 3.1 % 3.0 % 2.7 % 2.9 %
Range of risk-free interest rates 0.0% - 1.7% 0.0% - 0.9% 0.0% - 1.7% 0.1% - 0.7%
Range of expected volatilities for index N/A N/A 17:4% - 18.3% -
70.5% 64.6%

The PRSUs granted during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 are contingent on the achievement of
the Company’s financial performance metrics, its comparative market-based returns, or the achievement of
non-financial operating goals. For the awards based on financial performance metrics or its comparative market-based
returns, generally 50% of the PRSUs are earned based on the average of annual operating cash flow and earnings per
share goals established at the beginning of each fiscal year over a three-year performance period. Generally, the
remaining 50% of the PRSUs are earned based on the Company’s TSR measured against the benchmark TSR of a peer
group over the same period. Each PRSU recipient could vest in 0% to 150% of the target shares granted contingent on
the achievement of the Company’s financial performance metrics or its comparative market-based returns, and 0% or
100% of the target shares granted contingent on the achievement of non-financial operating goals.
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15.Comprehensive Income
The components of AOCI, net of tax, and the other comprehensive income (loss), excluding noncontrolling interest,
for the nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Net Unrealized

Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) Cumulat.lve Accumulated
. Translation Other
Gains on Cash Flow . .
. Adjustment Comprehensive
Investments Hedging
and Other Income
Instruments
BALANCE AT JULY 27, 2013 $379 $8 $221 $ 608
Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications attributable to Cisco Systems, Inc. 339 46 32 417
(Gains) loss'es r§01a551fled out of other (234 ) (44 ) — (278 )
comprehensive income
Tax benefit (expense) 43 ) 2 ) (5 ) (50 )
BALANCE AT APRIL 26, 2014 $441 $8 $248 $ 697
. NCF Unrealized Cumulative Accumulated
Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) .
. Translation Other
Gains on Cash Flow . .
. Adjustment Comprehensive
Investments Hedging
and Other Income
Instruments
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 $409 $(53 ) $305 $661
Other comprehensive income before ” 59 6 37
reclassifications attributable to Cisco Systems, Inc.
Gains) losses reclassified out of other
iom )h .. (46 ) (7 ) — (53 )
prehensive income
Tax benefit (expense) 9 (1 ) (14 ) (6 )
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 $394 $(2 ) $297 $ 689

The net gains (losses) reclassified out of other comprehensive income into the Consolidated Statements of Operations,
with line item location, during each period were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Comprehensive Income Income Before Taxes Income Before Taxes Line Itf:m in Statements of
Components Operations
Net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale investments

$69 $6 $234 $46 Other income (loss), net
Net unrealized gains and
losses on cash flow hedging
instruments
Foreign currency derivatives 13 3 36 5 Operating expenses
Foreign currency derivatives 3 1 8 2 Cost of sales—service
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16.Income Taxes

The following table provides details of income taxes (in millions, except percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Income before provision for income taxes $2.642 $2,945 $6,937 $8,356
Provision for income taxes $461 $467 $1,331 $643
Effective tax rate 17.4 % 15.9 % 19.2 % 1.7 %

As of April 26, 2014, the Company had $1.9 billion of unrecognized tax benefits, of which $1.6 billion, if recognized,
would favorably impact the effective tax rate. The Company regularly engages in discussions and negotiations with
tax authorities regarding tax matters in various jurisdictions. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that
certain federal, foreign, and state tax matters may be concluded in the next 12 months. Specific positions that may be
resolved include issues involving transfer pricing and various other matters. The Company estimates that it is
reasonably possible that the unrecognized tax benefits at April 26, 2014 could be reduced by $300 million in the next
12 months.

17.Segment Information and Major Customers

(a) Revenue and Gross Margin by Segment

The Company conducts business globally and is primarily managed on a geographic basis consisting of three
segments: the Americas, EMEA, and APJC. The Company’s management makes financial decisions and allocates
resources based on the information it receives from its internal management system. Sales are attributed to a segment
based on the ordering location of the customer. The Company does not allocate research and development, sales and
marketing, or general and administrative expenses to its segments in this internal management system because
management does not include the information in its measurement of the performance of the operating segments. In
addition, the Company does not allocate amortization and impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets,
share-based compensation expense, significant litigation and other contingencies, impacts to cost of sales from
purchase accounting adjustments to inventory, charges related to asset impairments and restructurings, and certain
other charges to the gross margin for each segment because management does not include this information in its
measurement of the performance of the operating segments.
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Summarized financial information by segment for the three and nine months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013,
based on the Company’s internal management system and as utilized by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”), is as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenue:
Americas $6,689 $7,127 $20,465 $21,286
EMEA 3,068 3,131 8,897 9,065
APJC 1,788 1,958 5,423 5,839
Total $11,545 $12,216 $34,785 $36,190
Gross margin:
Americas 4,196 4,460 12,823 13,341
EMEA 1,967 2,044 5,725 5,850
APJC 1,076 1,197 3,148 3,494
Segment total 7,239 7,701 21,696 22,685
Unallocated corporate items (233 ) (190 ) (1,332 ) (592 )
Total $7,006 $7,511 $20,364 $22,093

Revenue in the United States, which is included in the Americas, was $5.9 billion and $6.1 billion for the three
months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013, respectively, and was $17.9 billion and $18.3 billion for the nine
months ended April 26, 2014 and April 27, 2013.

(b)Revenue for Groups of Similar Products and Services

The Company designs, manufactures, and sells Internet Protocol (IP)-based networking and other products related to
the communications and IT industry, and provides services associated with these products and their use. The
Company groups its products and technologies into the following categories: Switching, NGN Routing, Service
Provider Video, Collaboration, Wireless, Data Center, Security, and Other Products. These products, primarily
integrated by Cisco IOS Software, link geographically dispersed local-area networks (LANSs), metropolitan-area
networks (MANSs), and wide-area networks (WANS).

The following table presents revenue for groups of similar products and services (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenue:
Switching $3,381 $3,601 $10,406 $10,962
NGN Routing 1,935 2,145 5,719 6,147
Service Provider Video 961 1,299 2,905 3,670
Collaboration 892 1,013 2,800 2,978
Data Center 662 515 1,868 1,480
Wireless 553 539 1,604 1,573
Security 361 327 1,119 1,002
Other 75 120 219 481
Product 8,820 9,559 26,640 28,293
Service 2,725 2,657 8,145 7,897
Total $11,545 $12,216 $34,785 $36,190
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The Company has made certain reclassifications to the prior period amounts to conform to the current period’s
presentation.
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(c) Additional Segment Information

The majority of the Company’s assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents and investments, as of April 26, 2014 and
July 27, 2013 were attributable to its U.S. operations. The Company’s total cash and cash equivalents and investments

held by various foreign subsidiaries were $45.9 billion and $40.4 billion as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013,

respectively, and the remaining $4.6 billion and $10.2 billion at the respective period ends was available in the United

States.
Property and equipment information is based on the physical location of the assets. The following table presents
property and equipment information for geographic areas (in millions):

April 26, July 27,
2014 2013
Property and equipment, net:
United States $2,718 $2,780
International 592 542
Total $3,310 $3,322

18.Net Income per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share (in millions, except per-share
amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, April 26, April 27,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income $2,181 $2,478 $5,606 $7,713
Weighted-average shares—basic 5,143 5,329 5,271 5,316
Effect of dilutive potential common shares 37 58 40 45
Weighted-average shares—diluted 5,180 5,387 5,311 5,361
Net income per share—basic $0.42 $0.47 $1.06 $1.45
Net income per share—diluted $0.42 $0.46 $1.06 $1.44
Antidilutive employee share-based awards, excluded 240 245 331 417

Employee equity share options, unvested shares, and similar equity instruments granted by the Company are treated as
potential common shares outstanding in computing diluted earnings per share. Diluted shares outstanding include the
dilutive effect of in-the-money options, unvested restricted stock, and restricted stock units. The dilutive effect of such

equity awards is calculated based on the average share price for each fiscal period using the treasury stock method.
Under the treasury stock method, the amount the employee must pay for exercising stock options, the amount of
compensation cost for future service that the Company has not yet recognized, and the amount of tax benefits that
would be recorded in additional paid-in capital when the award becomes deductible are collectively assumed to be
used to repurchase shares.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are
subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) and the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). All statements other than statements of historical facts are statements that could be
deemed forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, and
projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. Words such
as “expects,” “anticipates,” “targets,” “goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “continues,” “er
“may,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. In
addition, any statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and

trends in our businesses, and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements.
Readers are cautioned that these forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks,

uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict, including those identified below, under “Part II, Item 1A.
Risk Factors,” and elsewhere herein. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed
in any forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements for
any reason.

9 ¢ LT3 99 ¢ LT3 29 ¢ 29 ¢ EEINT3

OVERVIEW

We design, manufacture, and sell Internet Protocol (IP) based networking and other products related to the
communications and information technology (IT) industry and provide services associated with these products and
their use. We provide a broad line of products for transporting data, voice, and video within buildings, across
campuses, and around the world. Our products are designed to transform how people connect, communicate, and
collaborate. Our products are utilized at enterprise businesses, public institutions, telecommunications companies and
other service providers, commercial businesses, and personal residences.

A summary of our results is as follows (in millions, except percentages and per-share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, ) April 26, April 27, )

2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance
Revenue $11,545 $12,216 (5.5 )% $34,785 $36,190 (3.9 )%
Gross margin percentage 60.7 % 61.5 % (0.8 ) pts 58.5 % 61.0 % (2.5 ) pts
Research and development  $1,565 $1,542 1.5 % $4,701 $4.425 6.2 %
Sales and marketing $2,342 $2,375 (1.4 )% $7,030 $7,178 (2.1 )%
General and administrative  $460 $530 (132 )% $1,426 $1,674 (148 Y%
Total R&D, sales and
marketing, general and $4,367 $4,447 (1.8 )% $13,157 $13,277 (0.9 )%
administrative
Total asapercentage of 370 g 364 g 14 pts 37.8 % 367 % 1.1 pts
revenue
Amortization of purchased ¢, $89 202 )%  $207 $329 G701 )%
intangible assets
Restructuring and other ¢, ¢ $33 Q12 )% $336 $105 2200 %

charges

Operating income as a
percentage of revenue
Income tax percentage 17.4 % 15.9 % 1.5 pts 19.2 % 7.7 % 11.5 pts
Net income $2,181 $2,478 (120 Y% $5,606 $7,713 273 Y%

Netincome as apercentage g9 ¢ (3 % (14 ) pts 16.1 % 21.3 % (52 ) pts
of revenue

22.0 % 24.1 % 2.1 ) pts 19.2 % 23.2 % 40 ) pts
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (Continued)

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, revenue decreased by 5% as compared with the third quarter of fiscal 2013. Within
the total revenue change, product revenue decreased 8% and service revenue increased 3%. Total gross margin
decreased by 0.8 percentage points, driven by unfavorable impacts from pricing and mix partially offset by
productivity improvements. Research and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expenses
collectively increased as a percentage of revenue by 1.4 percentage points. Operating income as a percentage of
revenue decreased by 2.1 percentage points. Diluted earnings per share decreased by 9%, driven by a 12% decrease in
net income partially offset by a decrease in our diluted share count.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, revenue decreased by $0.7 billion as compared with the third quarter of fiscal 2013.
Revenue from the Americas decreased by $0.4 billion, driven by lower product revenue in most countries in this
segment including the United States. While we continued to experience increased stability across Europe, EMEA
revenue decreased $0.1 billion, led by product revenue declines in Russia as well as various other countries in this
segment. Revenue in our APJC segment decreased $0.2 billion, driven by product revenue declines in India and
Australia. The weakness we encountered in emerging countries throughout the world in the first six months of fiscal
2014 continued during the third quarter of fiscal 2014. Among the emerging countries in which we experienced
weakness with respect to product revenue during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 were Brazil within the Americas,
India within APJC, and Russia within EMEA.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, product revenue declined across all customer markets, with the most significant
decline in the service provider market.

From a product category perspective, the product revenue decrease of 8% year-over-year was driven in large part by
the lower product revenue from sales of products within our core business. While we saw improvement in business
momentum with respect to high-end routers, there was no increase in NGN Routing revenue this quarter as product
transitions in this area are still in their early stages. The effects of these product transitions, combined with other
challenges, led to a decrease in NGN Routing revenue of 10%. We also experienced a 6% decrease in revenue from
our Switching products. The other major product categories experienced revenue changes ranging from a 26%
decrease in Service Provider Video to a 29% increase in Data Center. The decrease in revenue from our Service
Provider Video products was driven largely by a decrease in revenue from sales of set-top boxes, which constitute a
significant portion of this product category. Partially offsetting the decline in product revenue was an increase in
service revenue. Service revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2014 increased by 3%, reflecting continued slower
growth which we believe was attributable to the impact of the declines in product revenue in recent quarters.

In summary, in the third quarter of fiscal 2014 while we saw some improved business momentum, we continued to
experience many of the same challenges we experienced in the first six months of fiscal 2014, including reduced
spending by our service provider customers, weakness in emerging countries, product transitions, and a conservative
approach to IT-related capital spending by customers. We expect that the challenges in the emerging countries, the
service provider market, and Switching and NGN Routing may continue for at least the next several quarters.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Diluted earnings per share decreased by 26%, driven by a 27% decrease in net income. A significant portion of the
decrease in net income was attributable to the fiscal 2013 net tax benefit related to our settlement with the IRS.
Revenue decreased 4%, with product revenue decreasing 6% and service revenue increasing 3%. Total gross margin
decreased by 2.5 percentage points. As a percentage of revenue, research and development, sales and marketing, and
general and administrative expenses collectively increased by 1.1 percentage points. Operating income as a percentage
of revenue decreased by 4.0 percentage points.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (Continued)

Strategy and Focus Areas

Our focus continues to be on our five foundational priorities:

Leadership in our core business (routing, switching, and associated services), which includes comprehensive security
and mobility solutions

Collaboration

Data center virtualization and cloud

Video

Architectures for business transformation

We believe that focusing on these priorities best positions us to continue to expand our share of our customers’
information technology spending.

Other Key Financial Measures

The following is a summary of our other key financial measures for the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal
2014 (in millions, except days sales outstanding in accounts receivable (DSO) and annualized inventory turns):

April 26, July 27,
2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents and investments $50,469 $50,610
Deferred revenue $13,151 $13,423
DSO 35 days 40 days
Inventories $1,528 $1,476
Annualized inventory turns 11.8 13.8
Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013
Cash provided by operating activities $8,720 $8,908
Repurchases of common stock—stock repurchase program $8,025 $1,613
Dividends $2,784 $2,392
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires us to make judgments, assumptions, and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 27, 2013, as updated as applicable in Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements herein, describes the significant accounting policies and methods used in the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. The accounting policies described below are significantly
affected by critical accounting estimates. Such accounting policies require significant judgments, assumptions, and
estimates used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and actual results could differ materially
from the amounts reported based on these policies.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria have been met:
Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. Contracts, Internet commerce agreements, and customer
purchase orders are generally used to determine the existence of an arrangement.
Delivery has occurred. Shipping documents and customer acceptance, when applicable, are used to verify delivery.
The fee is fixed or determinable. We assess whether the fee is fixed or determinable based on the payment terms
associated with the transaction and whether the sales price is subject to refund or adjustment.
Collectibility is reasonably assured. We assess collectibility based primarily on the creditworthiness of the customer
as determined by credit checks and analysis, as well as the customer’s payment history.
In instances where final acceptance of the product, system, or solution is specified by the customer, revenue is
deferred until all acceptance criteria have been met. When a sale involves multiple deliverables, such as sales of
products that include services, the multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine the unit of accounting, and the
entire fee from the arrangement is allocated to each unit of accounting based on the relative selling price. Revenue is
recognized when the revenue recognition criteria for each unit of accounting are met.
The amount of product and service revenue recognized in a given period is affected by our judgment as to whether an
arrangement includes multiple deliverables and, if so, our valuation of the units of accounting for multiple
deliverables. According to the accounting guidance prescribed in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 605,
Revenue Recognition, we use vendor-specific objective evidence of selling price (VSOE) for each of those units,
when available. We determine VSOE based on our normal pricing and discounting practices for the specific product
or service when sold separately. In determining VSOE, we require that a substantial majority of the historical
standalone transactions have the selling prices for a product or service fall within a reasonably narrow pricing range,
generally evidenced by approximately 80% of such historical standalone transactions falling within plus or minus 15%
of the median rates. When VSOE does not exist, we apply the selling price hierarchy to applicable
multiple-deliverable arrangements. Under the selling price hierarchy, third-party evidence of selling price (TPE) will
be considered if VSOE does not exist, and estimated selling price (ESP) will be used if neither VSOE nor TPE is
available. Generally, we are not able to determine TPE because our go-to-market strategy differs from that of others in
our markets, and the extent of our proprietary technology varies among comparable products or services from those of
our peers. In determining ESP, we apply significant judgment as we weigh a variety of factors, based on the facts and
circumstances of the arrangement. We typically arrive at an ESP for a product or service that is not sold separately by
considering company-specific factors such as geographies, competitive landscape, internal costs, profitability
objectives, pricing practices used to establish bundled pricing, and existing portfolio pricing and discounting.
Some of our sales arrangements have multiple deliverables containing software and related software support
components. Such sales arrangements are subject to the accounting guidance in ASC 985-605, Software-Revenue
Recognition.
As our business and offerings evolve over time, our pricing practices may be required to be modified accordingly,
which could result in changes in selling prices, including both VSOE and ESP, in subsequent periods. There were no
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material impacts during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 nor do we currently expect a material impact in the next 12
months on our revenue recognition due to any changes in our VSOE, TPE, or ESP.
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Revenue deferrals relate to the timing of revenue recognition for specific transactions based on financing
arrangements, service, support, and other factors. Financing arrangements may include sales-type, direct-financing,
and operating leases, loans, and guarantees of third-party financing. Our deferred revenue for products was $4.4
billion and $4.0 billion as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, respectively. Technical support services revenue is
deferred and recognized ratably over the period during which the services are to be performed, which typically is from
one to three years. Advanced services revenue is recognized upon delivery or completion of performance. Our
deferred revenue for services was $8.7 billion and $9.4 billion as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013, respectively.
We make sales to distributors which we refer to as two-tier systems of sales to the end customer. Revenue from
distributors is recognized based on a sell-through method using information provided by them. Our distributors
participate in various cooperative marketing and other programs, and we maintain estimated accruals and allowances
for these programs. If actual credits received by our distributors under these programs were to deviate significantly
from our estimates, which are based on historical experience, our revenue could be adversely affected.

Allowances for Receivables and Sales Returns

The allowances for receivables were as follows (in millions, except percentages):

April 26, July 27,

2014 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts $247 $228
Percentage of gross accounts receivable 5.3 % 4.0 %
Allowance for credit loss—Ilease receivables $249 $238
Percentage of gross lease receivables 6.6 % 6.3 %
Allowance for credit loss—Iloan receivables $92 $86
Percentage of gross loan receivables 5.7 % 5.2 %

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the collectibility of customer accounts. We
regularly review the adequacy of these allowances by considering internal factors such as historical experience, credit
quality and age of the receivable balances as well as external factors such as economic conditions that may affect a
customer’s ability to pay and expected default frequency rates, which are published by major third-party credit-rating
agencies and are generally updated on a quarterly basis. We also consider the concentration of receivables outstanding
with a particular customer in assessing the adequacy of our allowances for doubtful accounts. If a major customer’s
creditworthiness deteriorates, if actual defaults are higher than our historical experience, or if other circumstances
arise, our estimates of the recoverability of amounts due to us could be overstated, and additional allowances could be
required, which could have an adverse impact on our operating results.

The allowance for credit loss on financing receivables is also based on the assessment of collectibility of customer
accounts. We regularly review the adequacy of the credit allowances determined either on an individual or a collective
basis. When evaluating the financing receivables on an individual basis, we consider historical experience, credit
quality and age of receivable balances, and economic conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to pay. When
evaluating financing receivables on a collective basis, we use expected default frequency rates published by a major
third-party credit-rating agency as well as our own historical loss rate in the event of default, while also systematically
giving effect to economic conditions, concentration of risk and correlation. Determining expected default frequency
rates and loss factors associated with internal credit risk ratings, as well as assessing factors such as economic
conditions, concentration of risk, and correlation, are complex and subjective. Our ongoing consideration of all these
factors could result in an increase in our allowance for credit loss in the future, which could adversely affect our
operating results. Both accounts receivable and financing receivables are charged off at the point when they are
considered uncollectible.

A reserve for future sales returns is established based on historical trends in product return rates. The reserve for future
sales returns as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 was $135 million and $119 million, respectively, and was
recorded as a reduction of our accounts receivable. If the actual future returns were to deviate from the historical data
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Inventory Valuation and Liability for Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers and Suppliers

Our inventory balance was $1.5 billion as of both April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013. Inventory is written down based
on excess and obsolete inventories determined primarily by future demand forecasts. Inventory write-downs are
measured as the difference between the cost of the inventory and market, based upon assumptions about future
demand, and are charged to the provision for inventory, which is a component of our cost of sales. At the point of the
loss recognition, a new, lower cost basis for that inventory is established, and subsequent changes in facts and
circumstances do not result in the restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.

We record a liability for firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments with contract manufacturers
and suppliers for quantities in excess of our future demand forecasts consistent with the valuation of our excess and
obsolete inventory. As of April 26, 2014, the liability for these purchase commitments was $156 million, compared
with $172 million as of July 27, 2013, and was included in other current liabilities. Our provision for inventory was
$53 million and $92 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. The provision for the
liability related to purchase commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliers was $94 million and $76 million
for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

If there were to be a sudden and significant decrease in demand for our products, or if there were a higher incidence of
inventory obsolescence because of rapidly changing technology and customer requirements, we could be required to
increase our inventory write-downs, and our liability for purchase commitments with contract manufacturers and
suppliers, and accordingly our profitability, could be adversely affected. We regularly evaluate our exposure for
inventory write-downs and the adequacy of our liability for purchase commitments. Inventory and supply chain
management remain areas of focus as we balance the need to maintain supply chain flexibility to help ensure
competitive lead times with the risk of inventory obsolescence, particularly in light of current macroeconomic
uncertainties and conditions and the resulting potential for changes in future demand forecast.

Loss Contingencies and Product Warranties

We are subject to the possibility of various losses arising in the ordinary course of business. We consider the
likelihood of impairment of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, as well as our ability to reasonably estimate the
amount of loss, in determining loss contingencies. An estimated loss contingency is accrued when it is probable that
an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We
regularly evaluate information available to us to determine whether such accruals should be adjusted and whether new
accruals are required.

Third parties, including customers, have in the past and may in the future assert claims or initiate litigation related to
exclusive patent, copyright, trademark, and other intellectual property rights to technologies and related standards that
are relevant to us. These assertions have increased over time as a result of our growth and the general increase in the
pace of patent claims assertions, particularly in the United States. If any infringement or other intellectual property
claim made against us by any third party is successful, or if we fail to develop non-infringing technology or license the
proprietary rights on commercially reasonable terms and conditions, our business, operating results, and financial
condition could be materially and adversely affected.

We have recorded a liability for the expected remediation cost for certain products sold in prior fiscal years containing
memory components manufactured by a single supplier between 2005 and 2010. In February 2014, on the basis of the
growing number of failures as described in Note 12 (f) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we decided to
expand our approach, which resulted in an additional charge to product cost of sales of $655 million being recorded
for the second quarter of fiscal 2014. Estimating this liability is complex and subjective, and if we experience changes
in a number of underlying assumptions and estimates such as a change in claims compared with our expectations, or if
the cost of servicing these claims is different than expected, our estimated liability may be impacted.

Our liability for product warranties, included in other current liabilities, was $430 million as of April 26, 2014,
compared with $402 million as of July 27, 2013. See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our products
are generally covered by a warranty for periods ranging from 90 days to five years, and for some products we provide
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a limited lifetime warranty. We accrue for warranty costs as part of our cost of sales based on associated material
costs, technical support labor costs, and associated overhead. Material cost is estimated based primarily upon
historical trends in the volume of product returns within the warranty period and the cost to repair or replace the
equipment. Technical support labor cost is estimated based primarily upon historical trends in the rate of customer
cases and the cost to support the customer cases within the warranty period. Overhead cost is applied based on
estimated time to support warranty activities.
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The provision for product warranties during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013 was $532 million and $480
million, respectively. See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. If we experience an increase in warranty
claims compared with our historical experience, or if the cost of servicing warranty claims is greater than expected,
our profitability could be adversely affected.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense is presented as follows (in millions):

Nine Months Ended

April 26, April 27, .

2014 2013 Variance
Share-based compensation expense $1,009 $880 $129

Restricted stock units are valued using the market value of our common stock on the date of grant, discounted for the
present value of expected dividends. Restricted stock unit awards with market-based conditions are valued using a
Monte Carlo simulation. See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The determination of the fair value of employee stock options and employee stock purchase rights on the date of grant
using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly
complex and subjective variables. For employee stock options and employee stock purchase rights, these variables
include, but are not limited to, the expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, the risk-free interest
rate, and expected dividends as of the grant date. For employee stock options, we historically have used the implied
volatility for two-year traded options on our stock as the expected volatility assumption required in the
lattice-binomial model. For employee stock purchase rights, we used the implied volatility for traded options (with
lives corresponding to the expected life of the employee stock purchase rights) on our stock. The selection of the
implied volatility approach was based upon the availability of actively traded options on our stock and our assessment
that implied volatility is more representative of future stock price trends than historical volatility. The valuation of
employee stock options (granted in prior periods, but for which expense was recognized during the period presented)
is also impacted by kurtosis and skewness, which are technical measures of the distribution of stock price returns and
the actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors.

Because share-based compensation expense is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for
forfeitures. If factors change and we employ different assumptions in the application of our option-pricing model in
future periods or if we experience different forfeiture rates, the compensation expense that is derived may differ
significantly from what we have recorded in the current period.

Fair Value Measurements

Our fixed income and publicly traded equity securities, collectively, are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
at a fair value of $44.2 billion as of April 26, 2014, compared with $42.7 billion as of July 27, 2013. Our fixed income
investment portfolio, as of April 26, 2014, consisted primarily of high-quality investment-grade securities. See Note 8
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As described more fully in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, a valuation hierarchy is based on the
level of independent, objective evidence available regarding the value of the investments. It encompasses three classes
of investments: Level 1 consists of securities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical
securities; Level 2 consists of securities for which observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs are used, such as quoted
prices for similar securities in active markets or quoted prices for identical securities in less active markets and
model-derived valuations for which the variables are derived from, or corroborated by, observable market data; and
Level 3 consists of securities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant
to the measurement of the fair value.

Our Level 2 securities are valued using quoted market prices for similar instruments or nonbinding market prices that
are corroborated by observable market data. We use inputs such as actual trade data, benchmark yields, broker/dealer
quotes, and other similar data, which are obtained from independent pricing vendors, quoted market prices, or other
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sources to determine the ultimate fair value of our assets and liabilities. We use such pricing data as the primary input,
to which we have not made any material adjustments during fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, to make our assessments and
determinations as to the ultimate valuation of our investment portfolio. We are ultimately responsible for the financial
statements and underlying estimates.
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The inputs and fair value are reviewed for reasonableness, may be further validated by comparison to publicly
available information, and could be adjusted based on market indices or other information that management deems
material to its estimate of fair value. The assessment of fair value can be difficult and subjective. However, given the
relative reliability of the inputs we use to value our investment portfolio, and because substantially all of our valuation
inputs are obtained using quoted market prices for similar or identical assets, we do not believe that the nature of
estimates and assumptions affected by levels of subjectivity and judgment was material to the valuation of the
investment portfolio as of April 26, 2014. We had no Level 3 investments in our total portfolio as of April 26, 2014.
Other-than-Temporary Impairments

We recognize an impairment charge when the declines in the fair values of our fixed income or publicly traded equity
securities below their cost basis are judged to be other than temporary. The ultimate value realized on these securities,
to the extent unhedged, is subject to market price volatility until they are sold.

If the fair value of a debt security is less than its amortized cost, we assess whether the impairment is other than
temporary. An impairment is considered other than temporary if (i) we have the intent to sell the security, (ii) it is
more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its entire amortized cost basis, or
(iii) we do not expect to recover the entire amortized cost of the security. If an impairment is considered other than
temporary based on (i) or (ii) described in the prior sentence, the entire difference between the amortized cost and the
fair value of the security is recognized in earnings. If an impairment is considered other than temporary based on
condition (iii), the amount representing credit loss, defined as the difference between the present value of the cash
flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis of the debt security, will be recognized in earnings, and
the amount relating to all other factors will be recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). In estimating the
amount and timing of cash flows expected to be collected, we consider all available information, including past
events, current conditions, the remaining payment terms of the security, the financial condition of the issuer, expected
defaults, and the value of underlying collateral.

For publicly traded equity securities, we consider various factors in determining whether we should recognize an
impairment charge, including the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than our cost basis,
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and our intent and ability to hold the investment for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2014, impairment charges of $11 million on investments in publicly traded equity
securities were recognized in earnings, while there were no such impairment charges in the first nine months of fiscal
2013. There were no impairment charges on our investments in fixed income securities in the first nine months of
fiscal 2014 and 2013. Our ongoing consideration of all the factors described previously could result in additional
impairment charges in the future, which could adversely affect our net income.

We also have investments in privately held companies, some of which are in the startup or development stages. As of
April 26, 2014, our investments in privately held companies were $923 million, compared with $833 million as of
July 27, 2013, and were included in other assets. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. We monitor
these investments for events or circumstances indicative of potential impairment, and we make appropriate reductions
in carrying values if we determine that an impairment charge is required, based primarily on the financial condition
and near-term prospects of these companies. These investments are inherently risky because the markets for the
technologies or products these companies are developing are typically in the early stages and may never materialize.
Our impairment charges on investments in privately held companies were $10 million and $23 million for the first
nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Asset Impairments

Our methodology for allocating the purchase price relating to purchase acquisitions is determined through established
valuation techniques. Goodwill represents a residual value as of the acquisition date, which in most cases results in
measuring goodwill as an excess of the purchase consideration transferred plus the fair value of any noncontrolling
interest in the acquired company over the fair value of net assets acquired, including contingent consideration. We
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perform goodwill impairment tests on an annual basis in the fourth fiscal quarter and between annual tests in certain
circumstances for each reporting unit. The assessment of fair value for goodwill and purchased intangible assets is
based on factors that market participants would use in an orderly transaction in accordance with the new accounting
guidance for the fair value measurement of nonfinancial assets.

The goodwill recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 26, 2014 and July 27, 2013 was $24.1 billion
and $21.9 billion, respectively. The increase in goodwill for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 was due in large part
to our acquisition of Sourcefire, Inc. In response to changes in industry and market conditions, we could be required to
strategically realign our resources and consider restructuring, disposing of, or otherwise exiting businesses, which
could result in an impairment of goodwill. There was no impairment of goodwill in the first nine months of fiscal
2014 and 2013.
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We make judgments about the recoverability of purchased intangible assets with finite lives whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an impairment may exist. Recoverability of purchased intangible assets with
finite lives is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the future undiscounted cash flows the asset
is expected to generate. We review indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Recoverability of indefinite-lived
intangible assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the future discounted cash flows the
asset is expected to generate. If the asset is considered to be impaired, the amount of any impairment is measured as
the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the impaired asset. Assumptions and estimates about
future values and remaining useful lives of our purchased intangible assets are complex and subjective. They can be
affected by a variety of factors, including external factors such as industry and economic trends and internal factors
such as changes in our business strategy and our internal forecasts. There were no impairment charges related to
purchased intangible assets for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013. Our ongoing consideration of all the
factors described previously could result in additional impairment charges in the future, which could adversely affect
our net income.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Our effective tax rates differ
from the statutory rate, primarily due to the tax impact of state taxes, foreign operations, research and development
(R&D) tax credits, domestic manufacturing deductions, tax audit settlements, nondeductible compensation,
international realignments, and transfer pricing adjustments. Our effective tax rate was 17.4% and 15.9% in the third
quarter of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our effective tax rate was 19.2% and 7.7% in the first nine months of
fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating our uncertain tax positions and determining our provision for income
taxes. Although we believe our reserves are reasonable, no assurance can be given that the final tax outcome of these
matters will not be different from that which is reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals. We
adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit or the refinement
of an estimate. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such
differences will impact the provision for income taxes in the period in which such determination is made. The
provision for income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered
appropriate, as well as the related net interest and penalties.

Significant judgment is also required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. In
assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider all available evidence, including past operating results,
estimates of future taxable income, and the feasibility of tax planning strategies. In the event that we change our
determination as to the amount of deferred tax assets that can be realized, we will adjust our valuation allowance with
a corresponding impact to the provision for income taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

Our provision for income taxes is subject to volatility and could be adversely impacted by earnings being lower than
anticipated in countries that have lower tax rates and higher than anticipated in countries that have higher tax rates; by
changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities; by expiration of or lapses in the R&D tax credit or
domestic manufacturing deduction laws; by expiration of or lapses in tax incentives; by transfer pricing adjustments,
including the effect of acquisitions on our intercompany R&D cost-sharing arrangement and legal structure; by tax
effects of nondeductible compensation; by tax costs related to intercompany realignments; by changes in accounting
principles; or by changes in tax laws and regulations, treaties, or interpretations thereof, including possible changes to
the taxation of earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, the deductibility of expenses attributable to foreign income, or the
foreign tax credit rules. Significant judgment is required to determine the recognition and measurement attributes
prescribed in the accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes. The Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD), an international association comprised of 34 countries, including the United States, is
contemplating changes to numerous long-standing tax principles. These contemplated changes, if finalized and
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adopted by countries, will increase tax uncertainty and may adversely affect our provision for income taxes. As a
result of certain of our ongoing employment and capital investment actions and commitments, our income in certain
countries is subject to reduced tax rates and in some cases is wholly exempt from tax. Our failure to meet these
commitments could adversely impact our provision for income taxes. In addition, we are subject to the continuous
examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and other tax authorities. We regularly
assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our
provision for income taxes. There can be no assurance that the outcomes from these continuous examinations will not
have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue

The following table presents the breakdown of revenue between product and service (in millions, except
percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27, Variance Variance April 26, April 27, Variance Variance
2014 2013 in Dollars in Percent 2014 2013 in Dollars in Percent
Revenue:
Product $8,820 $9,559 $(739 ) (7.7 )% $26,640 $28,293 $(1,653 ) (5.8 )%
Percentage of 56, ¢, 780 % 766 % 182 %
revenue
Service 2,725 2,657 68 2.6 % 8,145 7,897 248 3.1 %
Percentage of 36 ¢ 018 % 234 % 218 %
revenue
Total $11,545 $12,216 $671 ) 5.5 )% $34,785 $36,190 $(1,405 ) 39 )%

We manage our business primarily on a geographic basis, organized into three geographic segments. Our revenue,
which includes product and service for each segment, is summarized in the following table (in millions, except
percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26,  April 27, i\r]la“ance Variance April 26,  April 27, i\r]la“ance Variance
2014 2013 in Percent 2014 2013 in Percent
Dollars Dollars
Revenue:
Americas $6,689 $7.127 $(438 ) (6.1 )% $20.465  $21286  $(821 ) 3.9 )%
Percentage of 579 % 584 % 588 % 589 %
revenue
EMEA 3,068 3,131 63 ) (20 )% 8,897 9,065 (168 ) (1.9 )%
Percentage of 266 % 256 % 256 % 250 %
revenue
APJC 1,788 1,958 (170 ) (87 )% 5423 5.839 416 ) (71 )%
Percentage of 155 % 160 % 156 % 161 %
revenue
Total $11,545  $12216  $671 ) (5.5 )% $34,785  $36,190  $(1,405) (3.9 )%

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

For the third quarter of fiscal 2014, as compared with the third quarter of fiscal 2013, total revenue decreased by 5%.
Within the total revenue change, product revenue decreased by 8%, while service revenue increased by 3%. Our total
revenue reflected declines across all geographic segments. We also experienced product revenue declines across all
customer markets.

Across our geographic segments, product revenue for most of our emerging countries experienced a decline. The
emerging countries of Brazil, Russia, India, China, and Mexico (“BRICM”), in the aggregate, experienced a 13%
product revenue decline, with declines in the service provider and commercial markets, collectively.

We conduct business globally in numerous currencies. The direct effect of foreign currency fluctuations on revenue
has not been material because our revenue is primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. However, if the U.S. dollar
strengthens relative to other currencies, such strengthening could have an indirect effect on our revenue to the extent it
raises the cost of our products to non-U.S. customers and thereby reduces demand. A weaker U.S. dollar could have
the opposite effect. However, the precise indirect effect of currency fluctuations is difficult to measure or predict
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because our revenue is influenced by many factors in addition to the impact of such currency fluctuations. We do
believe that there may have been some negative indirect effect on our revenue and business momentum in certain of
the emerging countries where there was depreciation of the local currency relative to the U.S. dollar, although such
indirect effects are difficult to measure, as noted.
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In addition to the impact of macroeconomic factors, including a reduced IT spending environment and budget-driven
reductions in spending by government entities, revenue by segment in a particular period may be significantly
impacted by several factors related to revenue recognition, including the complexity of transactions such as
multiple-element arrangements; the mix of financing arrangements provided to our channel partners and customers;
and final acceptance of the product, system, or solution, among other factors. In addition, certain customers tend to
make large and sporadic purchases, and the revenue related to these transactions may also be affected by the timing of
revenue recognition, which in turn would impact the revenue of the relevant segment. As has been the case in certain
of our emerging countries from time to time, customers require greater levels of financing arrangements, service, and
support, and these activities may occur in future periods, which may also impact the timing of the recognition of
revenue.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

For the first nine months of fiscal 2014, as compared with the first nine months of fiscal 2013, revenue decreased by
4%. Product revenue decreased by 6%, while service revenue increased by 3%. The decrease in product revenue
reflected declines across all geographic segments as well as across all customer markets. Service revenues experienced
slower growth in our Americas and APJC geographic segments while it grew slightly faster in the EMEA segment.

Product Revenue by Segment
The following table presents the breakdown of product revenue by segment (in millions, except percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27, Ylarlance Variance  April 26, April 27, Ylarlance Variance
2014 2013 ! in Percent 2014 2013 ! in Percent
Dollars Dollars
Product revenue:
Americas $4,925 $5,364 $(439 ) 82 )% $15,134 $16,067 $(933 ) (5.8 )%
Percentage of 559 % 561 % 568 % 568 %
product revenue
EMEA 2,472 2,590 (118 ) 4.6 )% 7,181 7,469 288 ) 39 )%
Percentage of 280 %271 % 270 % 264 %
product revenue
APIC 1,423 1,605 (182 ) (11.3 Y% 4,325 4,757 432 ) 9.1 )%
Percentage of 161 % 168 % 162 % 168 %
product revenue
Total $8,820 $9,559 $(739 ) (7.7 )% $26,640 $28,293 $(1,653) (5.8 )%

Americas

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product revenue in the Americas segment decreased by 8%. This product revenue decrease was across all of our
customer markets, led by a significant decline in the service provider market. From a country perspective, product
revenue decreased by 8% in the United States and 13% in both Canada and Brazil, partially offset by an increase of
8% in Mexico.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

The decrease in product revenue in the Americas segment of 6% reflected a product revenue decrease across all of our
customer markets, led by a product revenue decline in the service provider market. From a country perspective,
product revenue decreased by 6% in the United States, 8% in Canada, 11% in Brazil, and 1% in Mexico.

EMEA

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013
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Product revenue in the EMEA segment decreased by 5%. We experienced declines in product revenue across all of
our customer markets, led by a decline in the service provider market. Similar to what we observed in our other
geographic segments, we experienced weakness with respect to product revenue in the emerging countries within
EMEA. From an individual country perspective, product revenue decreased by 29% in Russia, 12% in Italy, 5% in
France, and 3% in the United Kingdom, partially offset by an increase of 22% in Spain, 7% in the Netherlands, and
6% in Germany.
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Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product revenue in the EMEA segment decreased by 4%, driven by declines in the service provider market and, to a
lesser extent, in the enterprise market. We experienced slower product revenue growth in the public sector and
commercial markets. From an individual country perspective, product revenue decreased by 22% in Russia, 9% in
France, and 3% in the United Kingdom, partially offset by an increase of 6% in the Netherlands.

APJC

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product revenue in the APJC segment decreased by 11%. The product revenue decline was across most of our
customer markets in the APJC segment, led by declines in the service provider and commercial markets, and to a
lesser degree, a decline in the enterprise market. We continued to experience declines in many of the emerging
countries in this segment, most notably in India, which experienced a year-over-year product revenue decline of 29%.
Other countries that contributed to the weakness in this segment included Australia, Japan and China, which
experienced year-over-year product revenue declines of 28%, 7% and 4%, respectively.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product revenue in the APJC segment decreased by 9%. The product revenue decline was across all of our customer
markets in the APJC segment, led by a product revenue decline in the service provider market. From a country
perspective, we experienced year-over-year product revenue declines of 24% in India, 12% in both Japan and
Australia, and 7% in China.
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Product Revenue by Groups of Similar Products

In addition to the primary view on a geographic basis, we also prepare financial information related to groups of
similar products and customer markets for various purposes. Our product categories consist of the following

categories (with subcategories in parentheses): Switching (fixed switching, modular switching, and storage); NGN
Routing (high-end routers, mid-range and low-end routers, and other NGN Routing products); Service Provider Video
(infrastructure, video software and solutions); Collaboration (unified communications, Cisco TelePresence, and
conferencing); Data Center; Wireless; Security; and Other Products. The Other Products category consists primarily of
emerging technology products and other networking products.
The following table presents revenue for groups of similar products (in millions, except percentages):

Product revenue:
Switching
Percentage of
product revenue
NGN Routing
Percentage of
product revenue
Service Provider
Video
Percentage of
product revenue
Collaboration
Percentage of
product revenue
Data Center
Percentage of
product revenue
Wireless
Percentage of
product revenue
Security
Percentage of
product revenue
Other
Percentage of
product revenue
Total

Three Months Ended
April 26,  April 27,
2014 2013
$3,381 $3,601
38.3 % 37.7
1,935 2,145
21.9 % 22.4
961 1,299
10.9 % 13.6
892 1,013
10.1 % 10.6
662 515
7.5 % 5.4
553 539
6.3 % 5.6
361 327
4.1 % 3.4

75 120
0.9 % 1.3
$8,820 $9,559

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Variance )

. Variance
mn in Percent
Dollars

$(220 ) (6.1 )%
210 ) 9.8 )Y
(338 ) (26.0 Y%
(121 ) (119 Y%
147 285 %
14 2.6 %
34 104 %
(45 ) (375 Y%
$(739 ) (17 )%

Nine Months Ended
April 26, April 27,
2014 2013
$10,406 $10,962
39.1 % 38.8
5,719 6,147
21.5 % 21.7
2,905 3,670
10.9 % 13.0
2,800 2,978
10.5 % 10.5
1,868 1,480
7.0 % 5.2
1,604 1,573
6.0 % 5.6
1,119 1,002
4.2 % 3.5

219 481

0.8 % 1.7
$26,640 $28,293

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Variance )

. Variance
Dollars in Percent
$(556 ) (5.1 )%
(428 ) (7.0 Y%
(765 ) (20.8 Y%
(178 ) (6.0 Y%
388 262 %
31 2.0 %
117 11.7 %
(262 ) 545 Y
$(1,653) (5.8 )%

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior-period amounts to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Switching

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013
Revenue in our Switching product category decreased by 6%, or $220 million. Revenue from our modular switches
declined by 12%, or $152 million, driven primarily by lower sales of Cisco Catalyst 6000 Series Switches. We also
experienced a decrease in revenue from our LAN fixed-configuration switches of 2%, or $47 million, resulting from
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lower sales of our existing products partially offset by the higher sales of our newer Cisco Catalyst 3850 Series
Switches and the adoption of Cisco Nexus 6000 Series Switches. Revenue in our Switching product category was also
negatively impacted by an 18% decrease in sales of storage products within this category.
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Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

The decrease in revenue in our Switching product category was driven by a 10%, or $418 million, decrease in revenue
from our modular switches, and to a lesser degree, a 1%, or $91 million, decrease in revenue from our LAN
fixed-configuration switches and a 13%, or $47 million, decrease in revenue from storage products within this
category. Revenue from our modular switches decreased due to lower sales of Cisco Catalyst 6000 Series Switches.
The decline in revenue from LAN fixed-configuration switches was due to lower sales of most of our Cisco Catalyst
Series Switches and Cisco Nexus Series Switches, partially offset by the continued adoption of Cisco Catalyst 3850
Series Switches and Cisco Nexus 6000 Series Switches.

NGN Routing

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

The decrease in revenue in our NGN Routing product category of 10%, or $210 million, was driven by a 17%, or
$125 million, decrease in revenue from our midrange and low-end router products; a 5%, or $68 million, decrease in
revenue from high-end router products; and an 11%, or $17 million, decrease in revenue from other NGN Routing
products. The decrease in revenue from our midrange and low-end router products was driven by lower sales of our
Cisco Integrated Services Routers (ISR) products. Revenue from our high-end products decreased due to lower sales
of Cisco CRS-3 Carrier Routing System products and our legacy high-end router products, partially offset by
increased sales of our Cisco Aggregation Services Routers (ASR) edge products. Revenue from other NGN Routing
products decreased due to lower sales of certain optical networking products.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our NGN Routing product category decreased by 7%, or $428 million. Revenue from high-end router
products decreased by 7%, or $239 million, driven by lower sales of our Cisco CRS-3 Carrier Routing System
products, and also lower sales of our legacy high-end router products. These decreases were partially offset by sales
growth for several Cisco ASR products.

We also saw declines in revenue from our midrange and low-end router products and from other NGN Routing
products. The decreases in revenue from our midrange and low-end router products were driven by lower sales of our
ISR products. Revenue from other NGN Routing products decreased due to lower sales of certain optical networking
products.

Service Provider Video

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Service Provider Video product category decreased by 26%, or $338 million, with the largest driver of
the decline being the 28%, or $279 million, decrease in sales of our Service Provider Video infrastructure products.
The revenue decline in Service Provider Video infrastructure products, which includes connected devices and cable
access products, was due primarily to lower sales of set-top boxes.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

The decrease in revenue from our Service Provider Video product category of 21%, or $765 million, was primarily
driven by a 23%, or $651 million, decrease in sales of our Service Provider Video infrastructure products. This decline
was due primarily to lower sales of set-top boxes.

Collaboration

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Our Collaboration product category continues to shift its focus to recurring revenue streams driven by
software-as-a-service (SaaS) offerings, for which revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the term of the
arrangement. Overall, revenue in our Collaboration product category decreased by 12%, or $121 million, primarily
due to decreased revenue from our Cisco TelePresence and Unified Communications products, driven by weakness in
endpoint products such as phones. These decreases were partially offset by higher revenue from our conferencing
products.
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Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Collaboration product category decreased by 6%, or $178 million, primarily due to decreased revenue
from our Unified Communications and Cisco TelePresence products, partially offset by increased revenue from our
conferencing products.
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Data Center

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

We continue to experience solid growth in our Data Center product category, which grew by 29%, or $147 million,
with solid sales growth of our Cisco Unified Computing System products across all geographic segments and
customer markets. The increase was due in large part to the continued momentum we are experiencing in both data
center and cloud environments, as current customers increase their data center build-outs, and as new customers
deploy these offerings.

To the extent our Data Center business grows and further penetrates the market, we expect that, in comparison to what
we experienced during the initial rapid growth of this business, the growth rates for our Data Center product revenue
will experience more normal seasonality consistent with customer equipment refresh requirements to support new and
existing applications.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

We experienced solid growth in our Data Center product category, which grew by 26%, or $388 million, with solid
sales growth of our Cisco Unified Computing System products across all geographic segments and customer markets.
The increase in this product category was driven by similar factors as discussed in the three month period immediately
above.

Wireless

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Wireless product category increased 3%, or $14 million, due to an increase in sales of Meraki
products, which we acquired in the second quarter of fiscal 2013, partially offset by lower sales of other wireless
products.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Wireless product category increased by 2%, or $31 million, due primarily to higher sales of Meraki
products, partially offset by a decrease in sales of other wireless products.

Security

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Security product category was up 10%, or $34 million, driven by sales of products from Sourcefire,
which we acquired in the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Revenue in our Security product category was up 12%, or $117 million, driven primarily by sales of Sourcefire
products and, to a lesser degree, by both higher sales of our high-end firewall products within our network security
product portfolio and slightly higher sales of our content security products.

Other

We experienced a year-over-year decrease in revenue in our Other Products category for the third quarter and for the
first nine months of fiscal 2014 due in large part to the sale of our Linksys product line in the third quarter of fiscal
2013.
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Service Revenue by Segment
The following table presents the breakdown of service revenue by segment (in millions, except percentages):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

April 26,  April27, ~ Yaviance Variance o .io6 aprip7, Yariance Variance

mn mn m mn
2014 2013 Dollars Percent 2014 2013 Dollars Percent

Service revenue:
Americas $1,764 $1,763 $1 0.1 % $5,331 $5,219 $112 2.1 %
Percentage of service ¢, % 66.3 % 65.4 % 66.1 %
revenue
EMEA 596 541 55 102 % 1716 1,596 120 75 %
Percentage of service ) o % 20.4 % 21.1 % 202 %
revenue
APIC 365 353 12 34 % 1,098 1,082 16 15 %
Percentage of service 5 | % 13.3 % 13.5 % 13.7 %
revenue

Total $2.725 $2.657 $68 26 % $8.145 $7.897 $248 31 %

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Service revenue continued to experience slower growth than in prior fiscal years, with varying levels of growth across
our geographic segments. Worldwide technical support services revenue increased by 3% while worldwide advanced
services revenue experienced 2% growth. Technical support service revenue experienced slow growth across all
geographic segments. Renewals and technical support service contract initiations associated with product sales
provided an installed base of equipment being serviced which, in concert with new service offerings, were the primary
factors driving the revenue increases. Advanced services revenue, which relates to consulting support services for
specific customer network needs, declined in the Americas segment but had solid growth in the APJC and EMEA
segments due to growth in subscription revenues.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Service revenue grew by 3%. Both worldwide technical support services revenue and worldwide advanced services
revenue increased by 3%. Technical support services revenue grew in our Americas and EMEA segments and was flat
in our APJC segment. Advanced services revenue declined slightly in our Americas segment but had solid growth in
our EMEA and APJC segments due to growth in subscription revenues.

Our service revenue in the first nine months of fiscal 2014 reflected slower growth than what we had been
experiencing in recent fiscal years. We believe that our service revenue growth has a correlation to product revenue
growth, and to the extent that our product revenue declines or grows at a slower rate, we expect that our service
revenue would be adversely impacted.
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Gross Margin
The following table presents the gross margin for products and services (in millions, except percentages):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
April 26,  April 27,  April 26, April 27, April 26,  April 27,  April 26, April 27,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Gross margin:
Product $5,225 $5,777 59.2 % 60.4 % $14,975 $16,906 56.2 % 59.8 %
Service 1,781 1,734 65.4 % 65.3 % 5,389 5,187 66.2 % 65.7 %
Total $7,006 $7,511 60.7 % 61.5 % $20,364 $22,093 58.5 % 61.0 %

Product Gross Margin
The following table summarizes the key factors that contributed to the change in product gross margin percentage for
the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2014 as compared with the corresponding prior year periods:

Product Gross Margin

Percentage

Three Months  Nine Months

Ended Ended
Fiscal 2013 60.4 % 59.8 %
Productivity (D 34 % 2.9 %
Product pricing (3.2 )% (3.1 )%
Mix of products sold (0.8 )% (0.5 )%
Supplier component remediation charge — % (2.5 )%
Amortization of purchased intangible assets (0.5 )% (0.5 )%
Acquisition fair value adjustment to inventory and other 0.1 )% 0.1 %
Fiscal 2014 59.2 % 56.2 %

() Productivity includes overall manufacturing-related costs, shipment volume, and other items not categorized
elsewhere.

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product gross margin decreased by 1.2 percentage points. The decrease in product gross margin was driven by
unfavorable impacts from product pricing, which were driven by normal market factors and impacted each of our
geographic segments and customer markets. In addition, the shift in the mix of products sold decreased our product
gross margin, primarily as a result of decreased revenue from of our higher margin Switching products and increased
revenue from our relatively lower margin Cisco Unified Computing System products. Our product gross margin for
the third quarter of fiscal 2014 was also negatively impacted by higher amortization expense of purchased intangible
assets from our recent acquisitions.

These amounts were partially offset by productivity benefits. The productivity benefits we experienced in the third
quarter of fiscal 2014 were driven by value engineering efforts; favorable component pricing; and continued
operational efficiency in manufacturing operations. Value engineering is the process by which production costs are
reduced through component redesign, board configuration, test processes, and transformation processes.

Our future gross margins could be impacted by our product mix and could be adversely affected by further growth in
sales of products that have lower gross margins, such as Cisco Unified Computing System products. Our gross
margins may also be impacted by the geographic mix of our revenue and, as was the case in the first nine months of
fiscal 2014, in fiscal 2013 and in fiscal 2012, may be adversely affected by product pricing attributable to competitive
factors. Additionally, our manufacturing-related costs may be negatively impacted by constraints in our supply chain,
which in turn could negatively affect gross margin. If any of the preceding factors that in the past have negatively
impacted our gross margins arise in future periods, our gross margins could continue to decline.
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Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Product gross margin decreased by 3.6 percentage points for the period. The decrease was due, in part, to the charge of
$655 million to product cost of sales for the second quarter of fiscal 2014 related to the expected cost of remediation
of issues with memory components in certain products sold in prior fiscal years. See Note 12 (f) to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The decrease was also due to the impact of unfavorable product pricing. Additionally, our
product gross margin for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 was negatively impacted by the shift in the mix of
products sold, primarily as a result of revenue increases in our relatively lower margin Cisco Unified Computing
System products and lower sales of our higher margin core products, partially offset by decreased revenue from our
relatively lower margin Service Provider Video products. Further, as discussed above, for the first nine months of
fiscal 2014 our product gross margin was negatively impacted by amortization expense on purchased intangibles from
our recent acquisitions. These factors were partially offset by productivity improvements driven by similar factors as
discussed in the three month period immediately above.

Service Gross Margin

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

Our service gross margin percentage increased slightly by 0.1 percentage points for the third quarter of fiscal 2014, as
compared with the third quarter of fiscal 2013. The increase was primarily due to higher sales volume in both
advanced services and technical support services and, to a lesser degree, a favorable mix impact. The favorable mix
impact was due to our higher gross margin technical support services category contributing a higher proportion of
service revenue for third quarter of fiscal 2014. The benefits to gross margin of increased sales volume and mix were
partially offset by increased cost impacts such as outside service costs, partner delivery costs and headcount-related
costs.

Our service gross margin normally experiences some fluctuations due to various factors such as the timing of contract
initiations in our renewals, our strategic investments in headcount, and the resources we deploy to support the overall
service business. Other factors include the mix of service offerings, as the gross margin from our advanced services is
typically lower than the gross margin from technical support services.

Nine Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013

Service gross margin percentage increased by 0.5 percentage points for the period driven by higher sales volume. The
benefit to gross margin of increased sales volume was partially offset by increased cost impacts such as outside
service costs, headcount-related costs and partner delivery costs.
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Gross Margin by Segment
The following table presents the total gross margin for each segment (in millions, except percentages):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
April 26,  April 27,  April 26, April 27, April 26,  April 27,  April 26, April 27,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Gross margin:
Americas $4,196 $4,460 62.7 % 62.6 % $12,823 $13,341 62.7 % 62.7 %

EMEA 1,967 2,044 64.1 % 65.3 % 5,725 5,850 64.3 % 64.5 %
APJC 1,076 1,197 60.2 % 61.1 % 3,148 3,494 58.0 % 59.8 %
Segment total 7,239 7,701 62.7 % 63.0 % 21,696 22,685 62.4 % 62.7 %
Unallocated

corporate (233 ) (190 ) (1,332 ) (592 )

items (1)

Total $7,006 $7,511 60.7 % 61.5 % $20,364 $22,093 58.5 % 61.0 %

(1) The unallocated corporate items for the periods presented include the effects of amortization and impairments of
acquisition-related intangible assets, share-based compensation expense, significant litigation and other contingencies,
impacts to cost of sales from purchase accounting adjustments to inventory, and certain other charges. We do not
allocate these items to the gross margin for each segment because management does not include such information in
measuring the performance of the operating segments.

Three Months Ended April 26, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended April 27, 2013

The Americas segment experienced a slight gross margin percentage increase due to the impact of productivity
improvements in this geographic segment. Partially offsetting this favorable impact to gross margin were negative
impacts from pricing and an unfavorable mix. The unfavorable mix impact was driven by a decrease in revenue from
our higher margin Switching products.

The gross margin percentage decrease in our EMEA segment was due primarily to the unfavorable impact from
pricing, as well as an unfavorable mix impact, partially offset by productivity improvements in this geographic
segment. The unfavorable mix impact was driven by a decrease in revenue from our higher margin Switching
products and, to a lesser degree, an increase in revenue from our lower margin Cisco Unified Computing System
products.

Our APJC segment gross margin percentage decreased primarily as a result of unfavorable impacts from pricing, and
also as a result of an unfavorable mix. The unfavorable mix impact was driven by an increase in revenue from our
lower margin Cisco Unified Computing System products. Partially offsetting these factors were impacts from
productivity improvements and higher service gross margin in this geographic segment.

The gross margin percent